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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibilities, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM
Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

To our Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the "Board”) of F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (the “"Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2018.

We believe that up to the date of this report, there was no significant
change in the market as disclosed in the section headed “Industry
Overview"” in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 March 2017 (the
“Prospectus”). Leveraging on years of experience and competitive
strengths of the Group, including (i) established diesel oil provider for
the construction sector in Hong Kong; (i) experienced management
team; (iii) possession of our own fleet of diesel tank wagons; and (iv)
stable relationships with our key customers and suppliers, the
management team of the Group reinforced the Group's presence in
Hong Kong, effectively expand the Group's customer base for marine
diesel oil, and maintained a rapid growth in terms of overall sales.

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$164.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$16.1 million or 8.9% as compared to the year ended
31 March 2017. The Group's net profit for the year was approximately
HK$1.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 83.0% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2017.

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed (the
"Listing”) on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) by way of placing and public offer (collectively,
the “Share Offer”) on 12 April 2017, which marked a significant
milestone for the Group. In addition, the net proceeds raised from the
Listing amounting to approximately HK$45.1 million will help the
Group to implement its business strategies, which include (i) continue
to expand the Group's market share in the diesel sales market in Hong
Kong and enhance the Group's fleet of diesel tank wagons; (i) expand
and develop the Group’s marine bunkering business; (iii) further
strengthen the Group's manpower; (iv) strengthen the Group’s working
capital management; and (v) upgrade the Group’'s information
technology systems. The Group believes that successful
implementation of the above business strategies will help the Group to
strengthen the Group's position as an established diesel oil provider
for the construction sector in Hong Kong and create long-term
Shareholder’s value.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHRES

The above business strategies laid a solid foundation for the
achievement of the profit target of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will make steady progress in accordance
with the plans formulated before its Listing and its actual operational
conditions, so as to facilitate effective implementation of the business
objectives of the Company and bring benefits from it.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had eleven diesel tank wagons of
various capacity to meet customers’ requirement. In order to increase
the total capacity of our fleet of diesel tank wagon to facilitate the
increasing demand from customers, and further reduce the level of
nitrogen dioxide and particulates to fulfill our social responsibility, the
Group planned to acquire three new diesel tank wagons and replace
three existing diesel tank wagons. Three new diesel tank wagons had
been delivered and the acquisition of three new diesel tank wagons
will be completed by the end of December 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had acquired a marine oil barge, had
carried out the preparatory work for the marine bunkering business
including the commencement of application for licences and also had
registered the mooring with the Hong Kong Marine Department and
engaged a seafarers management company to recruit the coxswains,
technical operators and sailors. Besides, the Group had carried out
marketing and promotional activities and negotiate with potential
customers to secure purchase orders for marine diesel oil. The marine
oil barge had commenced the trial operations in April 2018.

Our Group always strives to improve its operational efficiency and
profitability of its businesses. We believe that market trends of diesel
sales market in Hong Kong remains optimistic mainly due to the stable
and high level investment in public infrastructure including the railway
network, development of marine construction projects including
Central-Wanchai Bypass and Island Eastern Corridor Link and the Hong
Kong International Airport’s third runway project together with the
recovery of logistics industry in Hong Kong, coupled with the opening
of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge in the future which is expected to
drive up logistics companies’ demand for diesel oil.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

We will also proactively seek potential business opportunities that will
broaden our sources of income and enhance value to the shareholders.
On 17 May 2018, the Company and Virtue Ever Limited ("Virtue Ever”)
entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Virtue Ever has conditionally agreed to sell a 10% equity interest in
the China Forest Food Limited, together with its subsidiaries, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB1.5 million (including the earnest
money of RMB1.0 million which has been paid in cash) (the
“Acquisition”). The completion of the Acquisition under the Acquisition
Agreement is subject to certain customary conditions precedent to be
fulfilled. Please refer to the announcement of the Company date 17
May 2018 for details.

The Board would like to extend its sincere thanks to our shareholders,
business partners and customers for their utmost support to the Group.
We would also like to take this opportunity to thank all management
members and staff for their hard work and dedication throughout the
year.

FONG Chun Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally carries on the business of the sale and
transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong. The
Group also supplies marine diesel oil used for construction vessels and
lubricant oil used for construction machinery and vehicles. Most of the
Group's customers are construction companies which require diesel oil
to operate their construction machinery and vehicles. The Group had a
fleet of eleven diesel tank wagons of various capacity and a marine oil
barge as at 31 March 2018.

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$164.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$16.1 million or 8.9% as compared to the year ended
31 March 2017. The decrease was mainly due to drop in demand from
customers after the completion of customers’ projects during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Meanwhile, the Group has executed strict control on costs and
expenses. The Group recorded a profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$1.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. The decrease was mainly due to drop in demand of diesel
oil and marine oil from customers after the completion of customers’
projects in May 2017 and April 2017, respectively, and the demand of
marine oil was compensated by the increase in demand upon the
commencement of customer’s project in November 2017, as compared
to the year ended 31 March 2017. The recognition of the Listing
expenses of approximately HK$7.0 million in connection with the
Listing for the year ended 31 March 2018 as compared to
approximately HK$7.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,
Excluding the one-off Listing expenses, the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company would have been approximately HK$8.2
million for year ended 31 March 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately 43.1% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2017.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Board believes that market trend of sales of diesel oil and marine
diesel oil market in Hong Kong remains optimistic mainly due to the
stable and high level investment in public infrastructure including the
railway network, development of marine construction projects including
Central Wanchai Bypass and Island Eastern Corridor Link and the Hong
Kong International Airport’s third runway project together with the
recovery of logistics industry in Hong Kong, coupled with the opening
of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge in the future which is expected to
drive up logistics companies’ demand for diesel oil and marine diesel
oil.

In view of the challenging business environment and keen competition
in the diesel oil sales market in Hong Kong, our Group will continue to
deploy more resources on talent recruitment and strengthen our
business development and marketing strategy on diesel oil and will
also proactively seek potential business opportunities that will broaden
our sources of income and enhance value to the shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately HK$16.1 million or
approximately 8.9% from approximately HK$180.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$164.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Revenue from the sales of diesel oil, marine oil and lubricant oil
accounted for approximately HK$159.7 million, HK$3.3 million and
HK$1.5 million, representing approximately 97.1%, 2.0% and 0.9%,
respectively, of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2018. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the revenue from the sales of
diesel oil, marine oil and lubricant oil accounted for approximately
HK$165.7 million, HK$13.6 million and HK$1.3 million, representing
approximately 91.8%, 7.5% and 0.7%, respectively, of the Group's total
revenue. Sales of diesel oil remained the largest contributor to the
Group's revenue. The decrease was mainly due to drop in demand of
diesel oil and marine oil from customers after the completion of
customers’ projects in May 2017 and April 2017 respectively, and the
demand of marine oil was compensated by the increase in demand
upon the commencement of customer’s project in November 2017, as
compared to the year ended 31 March 2017.

The decrease in the Group's revenue was primarily due to the decrease
in the Group's sales of diesel oil and marine diesel oil. Further analysis
on the Group's financial performance are set out below.

Sales quantity

The sales quantity of diesel oil decreased by approximately 16.7% from
approximately 43.9 million litres for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately 36.5 million litres for the year ended 31 March 2018,
primarily due to the drop in demand from customers after the
completion of customers’ project in May 2017 and therefore less diesel
oil was required from the construction and logistics customers during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The sales quantity of marine oil
decreased by approximately 77.7% from approximately 3.6 million
litres for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately 0.8 million
litres for the year ended 31 March 2018. The drop in demand from
customers after the completion of projects in April 2017 was
compensated by the increase in demand upon the commencement of
customer’s project in November 2017, as compared to year ended 31
March 2017. The sales quantity of lubricant oil remained stable at
approximately 0.1 million litres and approximately 0.1 million litres for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Selling price

The average selling price of the Group's diesel oil increased by
approximately 15.6% from approximately HK$3.78 per litre for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$4.37 per litre for the year
ended 31 March 2018 whereas the average selling price of the Group's
marine diesel oil increased by approximately 8.3% from approximately
HK$3.75 per litre for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$4.06 per litre for the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase of the
average selling prices of the diesel oil and marine diesel oil were
adjusted upwards as a result of the increasing trend in the prevailing
market prices.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of diesel oil costs, marine diesel oil
costs, lubricant oil costs, direct labour costs and depreciation. The
purchase cost for the diesel oil, marine diesel oil costs and lubricant oil
costs depends on the domestic purchase price offered by the Group's
oil suppliers, with reference to the price indices such as Europe Brent
spot crude price.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's cost of sales was
approximately HK$139.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.3% from approximately HK$155.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017. Such decrease was in line with the overall drop

in revenue.

The largest component of the cost of sales was diesel oil cost, which
amounted to approximately HK$132.2 million and HK$140.2 million,
representing approximately 94.7% and 89.9% of the cost of sales for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively. The unit
purchase cost of diesel oil increased by approximately 15.8% from
approximately HK$3.23 per litre for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately HK$3.74 per litre for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the unit purchase costs of marine diesel oil increased by approximately
11.6% from approximately HK$3.03 per litre for the year ended 31
March 2017 to approximately HK$3.38 per litre for the year ended 31
March 2018. The increase in unit purchase cost of diesel oil was in line
with the market trend for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Marine diesel oil costs represent the purchase cost of marine diesel oil
from the Group's suppliers on a back-to-back basis after the customers’
orders are confirmed. For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the
marine diesel oil costs were approximately HK$2.8 million and HK$11.0
million, respectively, representing approximately 2.0% and 7.1 % of the
cost of sales, respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost of sales (Continued)

Lubricant oil cost represents the purchase cost of lubricant oil from the
Group's suppliers. For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the
lubricant oil costs were approximately HK$1.2 million and HK$1.1
million, respectively, representing approximately 0.9% and 0.7% of the
cost of sales, respectively.

The direct labour costs comprise wages and benefits, including wages,
bonuses, retirement benefit costs and other allowances and benefits
payable to all the Group’s diesel tank wagons (drivers and logistics
assistants) involved in the transportation of the products from the oil
depot to the customers. The direct labour costs amounted to
approximately HK$2.2 million and HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Group had ten and ten full-
time employees (drivers and logistics assistants) responsible for the
logistics support for the Group's diesel tank wagons as at 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017, respectively.

Depreciation represented depreciation charges for the Group’s
equipment which mainly comprise diesel tank wagons and a marine oil
barge. The depreciation amounted to approximately HK$1.3 million
and HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit represented the Group's revenue less cost of sales.
The Group's gross profit remained stable at approximately HK$24.8
million and HK$24.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
2017, respectively. The Group's gross profit margin increased slightly
from 13.8% for the year ended 31 March 2017 to 15.1% for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Other gains or losses

The Group's other gains or losses decreased from the gains of
approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to the
losses of approximately HK$0.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 mainly due to unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss approximately HK$1.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 but no such loss occurred for the year ended 31 March
2017.
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EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses mainly include administrative staff costs,
rent and rate, listing expenses and others. The Group’s administrative
expenses increased by approximately 33.4% from approximately
HK$13.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$17.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2018, primarily due to the
increase in legal and professional fee of approximately HK$2.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 but no such expenses happened for
the year ended 31 March 2017, and the increase in staff costs of
approximately HK$1.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Other operating expenses

The other operating expenses mainly include motor vehicle expenses,
repair and maintenance insurance and license fee. The Group's other
operating expenses increased by approximately 75.8% from
approximately HK$1.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately HK$2.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018
primarily due to the increase in motor vehicles and marine barge
running expenses of approximately HK$2.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Finance costs

The finance costs mainly consist of interests on bank borrowings which
were wholly repayable within five years, interest expenses on bank
overdrafts and interest expenses on obligations under finance leases.
The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 47.0% from
approximately HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
was in line with the decrease of average borrowings of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Income tax expenses

As all of the Group's profit are derived from Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to income tax in Hong Kong and has no tax payable in other
jurisdictions. The Group's income tax decreased by approximately
11.7% from approximately HK$2.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 to approximately HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 primarily due to the decrease in assessable profits for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The Group's effective tax rate increased from
approximately 15.6% for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately 22.3% for the year ended 31 March 2018 as a result of
temporary difference arising from accelerated depreciation for the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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BEEENmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit decreased by
approximately HK$6.1 million from a profit of approximately HK$7.3
million to a profit of approximately HK$1.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2018, and the Group’s net profit margin decreased from
approximately 4.0% to net profit margin of 0.8% during the same
periods. The decrease in the net profit and net profit margin for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was mainly due to drop in demand of diesel
oil and marine oil from customers after the completion of customers’
projects in May 2017 and April 2017, respectively, and the demand of
marine oil was compensated by the increase in demand upon the
commencement of customer’s project in November 2017, as compared
to the year ended 31 March 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group finance its operations through cash generated from
operating activities and interest-bearing bank borrowing, overdrafts
and finance leases. The Group recorded net current assets of
approximately HK$76.6 million as at 31 March 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's current assets amounted to
approximately HK$88.2 million and the Group’s current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$11.7 million. Current ratio was
approximately 7.5 as at 31 March 2018. Current ratio is calculated
based on total current assets at the end of the year divided by total
equity at the end of the year. Gearing ratio was approximately 0.2% as
at 31 March 2018 which was calculated based on the total debt at the
end of the year divided by total equity at the end of the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the maximum limit of the banking facilities
available to the Group was amounted to approximately HK$20.0 million
and none of the banking facilities was utilized.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$87.8 million. The share capital of the Group only
comprises of ordinary shares.

The Shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date. There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Group since then.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the financial assets with Malaysian ringgit. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entities’
functional currency. The Group however did not engage in any
derivatives agreements and did not commit to any financial instrument
to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31
March 2018.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year ended 31 March 2018. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies save for those reorganisation
activities done for the purpose of Listing as set out in the paragraph
headed "Reorganisation” under the section headed "History and
Development, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in the Prospectus.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT
VENTURES

Apart from the reorganisation in relation to the Listing as disclosed in
the Prospectus, there were no other significant investments held,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures during the year ended 31 March 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, save as disclosed below in “Use of Proceeds” the
Group did not have any other material capital commitments or any
material contingent liabilities.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend a payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the motor vehicles with carrying amount of
approximately HK$0.2 million have been pledged to secure finance
leases granted to the Group respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's pledged short-term bank deposits in
the amount of HK$4.0 million was pledged as security for the Group's
banking facilities.

COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS

The following is a comparison of the Group's implementation plans for
its business strategies up to 31 March 2018 as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus with the
Group's actual implementation progress:

Implementation plan

from 1 April 2017

to 31 March 2018
2017F4HA1HZ2018563A31H
B HEATRT &

Business strategy

ES P

RE
EEOTEZFEHE20184F K 2017E3 A 31
A FEIRMERBEE -

EEERH

R2018F 3 A31H ' REMEXN02EEE T
REDEERT - U RIESRASEE A E
BHE -

R2018F3A31H  REER D EITE HR
THERAOBEBTDHER  MERAEBEIR
TREMERR -

RERRBETTERERETEE
HYEE B

AT AREENBIRER [ REAZIRFAER
EAS ] —SEEE 2018 3 A 31 BRI XK
RESHEITET S EAEE BRI THE AL

Actual implementation
progress up to 31 March 2018
HZE2018%3A31HH
BRETEE

Expansion and enhancement e
of our fleet of diesel tank
wagons ]

wagons

wagons
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Purchase three new diesel tank e

Replace three existing diesel tank

Two new diesel tank wagons had
been purchased and one existing
diesel tank wagon had been
replaced for the year ended 31
March 2018. The delivery of the rest
of new diesel tank wagons will be
completed on the end of December
2018.
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COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS (Continued)

Business strategy

Implementation plan

from 1 April 2017

to 31 March 2018
2017%4B1HBZE2018%F3A31H

ERRIRETIEHEERETERE
A EE B ()

Actual implementation
progress up to 31 March 2018
EZE2018%3A31HK

ES 3 HYHEAT T BEIRETEE
Development and expansion e Carry out preparatory work e The Group had carried out

of our marine bunkering
business

TR REE L HOhER

including entering into a formal
contract with an independent
barge supplier for the design and
manufacture of the marine diesel
oil barge and commence
application for licences and permits
requisite to the purchase of the
marine diesel oil barge and the

buoy

J Monitor the progress of building of e

the marine diesel oil barge

o Commence trial and full operation

of the marine diesel oil barge

o Carry out marketing and e
promotional activities and
negotiate with potential customers
to secure purchase orders for

marine diesel oil
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preparatory work including
entering into a formal contract with
an independent barge supplier for
the design and manufacture of the
marine diesel oil barge and
commenced application for
licences and permits requisite to
the purchase of the marine diesel
oil barge and the buoy

The Group has closely monitored
the progress of building of the
marine diesel oil barge

The Group had commenced trial
operation of the marine diesel oil
barge in April 2018 and prepared
for full operation.

The Group had carried out
marketing and promotional
activities and negotiate with
potential customers to secure
purchase orders for marine diesel

oil.
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COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS (Continued)

Business strategy

ES 3

Implementation plan

from 1 April 2017

to 31 March 2018
2017%4B1HBZE2018%F3A31H
M AT 8

ERRIRETIEHEERETERE
A EE B ()

Actual implementation
progress up to 31 March 2018
EZE2018%3A31HK
BRIETEE

Upgrading our information
technology and systems

RITEARR MRS

Strengthening our manpower

R AFIEAF

Purchase and upgrade new office
administrative information
technology systems

Review and maintain the
performance of the information
technology systems
ﬁﬁ\&E%ﬁﬂ#"*ﬁﬁéﬁiéﬂﬂ&
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Recruit three drivers and three
logistics assistants to strengthen
our workforce required for our fleet
of diesel tank wagons

Recruit one safety supervisor to
enhance our occupational safety
management

Recruit (i) seafarers including two
coxswains, two technical operators,
four sailors, (ii) one administration
staff, (iii) one operation manager
and (iv) one independent
consultant to cope with our marine
bunkering business

Provide training to our existing and
newly recruited staff and/or
sponsor our staff to attend training
courses on occupational health and

safety
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The Group was still in negotiation
with the potential suppliers on the
requirements and specification of
the new office administrative
information technology system

REBNAF PR EITHE MR
RAH B SR e AR S 7B 1 PR
1T

One logistics assistant was hired,
the recruitment of the rest of staff
will be hired around October 2018.

Safety supervisor was hired through
job reallocation.

The Group contracted with a
service company to operate the
marine bunkering business

Training courses and on-the-job
training have been provided to
staff.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the 2017 Annual Report of the Company, the actual net
proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the Share Offer (after deduction
of the underwriting commission and Listing related expenses) were
approximately HK$45.1 million, which was less than the estimated Net
Proceeds of approximately HK$50.9 million as set out in the Prospectus
and the allotment results announcement of the Company dated 11
April 2017.

Set out below is the actual use of the Net Proceeds up to 31 March
2018:

d Analysis

P8 IE A&

BINARNE 2017 FFERABE - BRHBEE
BRRTISRIEF R ([ TS RIEFE ) (Kk e
HMe Rk ETAEBRAXE) A4 ITEEET
BERBREREAQGHEA2017F4 811
HOREERAMIES G TS REFEY
509B&%ETT -

AN &5 E 220184 3 A 31 H 89 P {5 58 %
BHNERAZ

o Purchase of diesel tank wagonse BB L hET#E

(Note 1) (P&E1) 7.8 17.3% 3.7 4.1
o Purchase of marine diesel oil o BB BB

barge (Note 2) GE)) 14.0 31.0% 8.5 55
e Further strengthen our o HE—FMBAF

manpower (Note 3) (B5E3) 6.1 13.6% 15 4.6
e Upgrade of ourinformation o RFA AR L ES

technology systems (Note 4) (Mi5E4) 36 7.9% - 3.6
e Working capital necessary for o B MATIEE K

the operation of the new diesel ~ #UMEBHMZEMNLEE S

tank wagons and marine (PFg3ES)

bunkering business (Note 5) 9.1 20.2% 12 79
e Working capital o ZERD 4.5 10.0% 4.5 -

451 100.0% 19.4 25.7
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Note:

1 Two new diesel tank wagons had been purchased and one existing diesel tank
wagon had been replaced for the year ended 31 March 2018.

2 Marine diesel oil barge has been delivered in November 2017.

3 The Group has been actively involved in the recruitment and selection of suitable
candidates through various means including job advertisements in major
newspapers.

4 The Group was still in negotiation with the potential suppliers on the requirements
and specification of the new office administrative information technology system.

5 The Group contracted with a service company to operate the marine bunkering

business.

Save as disclosed above, the Group will apply the net proceeds
received from the Share Offer in the manners consistent with the
proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The implantation plans for
business strategies and use of Net Proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus were based on the best estimation and assumption of
future market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus. The Group implemented its business strategies and
applied the Net Proceeds based on the actual development of the
Group's business and industry, as well as market conditions.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had invested a total amount of
approximately HK$3.3 million in a company listed in Bursa Malaysia
Berhad. As at 31 March 2018, this investment was reflected at fair value,
a realized loss of approximately HK$0.2 million and a net unrealized
loss of approximately HK$1.5 million was recorded.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group engaged a total of 22 employees (31
March 2017: 22) including the Directors. For the year ended 31 March
2018, total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$6.4 million (year
ended 31 March 2017: approximately HK$4.8 million). Remuneration
(including employees’ benefits) is maintained within the market level
and reviewed on a periodic basis. Employees’ salary and relevant
benefits are determined on the basis of performance, qualification,
experience, positions and the Group’s business performance.
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ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The principal activity of the Group is governed by Hong Kong
environmental laws and regulations including the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong.
These laws and regulations cover a broad range of environmental
matters, including air pollution, noise and gas emissions, leakage of oil
products or other hazardous substances. The Group recognises the
importance of environmental protection and has implemented various
environmental protection measures in order to minimise the operation
impact on the environment and natural resources.

The Group will continue to monitor the business operations in order to
ensure that it does not have only significant adverse effect on the
environment and that the Group’s environment protection measures
are adequate to ensure compliance with all applicable current Hong
Kong laws or regulations.

As at the date of this report, no prosecution, penalty or punishment
has been imposed upon the Group for the violation of any
environmental laws or regulations.

The Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out on page 35 to 50 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 May 2018, the Company and Virtue Ever Limited ("Virtue Ever”)
entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Virtue Ever has conditionally agreed to sell a 10% equity interest in
the China Forest Food Limited, together with its subsidiaries, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB1.5 million (including the earnest
money of RMB1.0 million which has been paid in cash) (the
“Acquisition”). The completion of the Acquisition under the Acquisition
Agreement is subject to certain customary conditions precedent to be
fulfilled. Please refer to the announcement of the Company date 17
May 2018 for details.

As from 31 March 2018 to the date of this report, save as disclosed in
this report, the Board is not aware of any significant events requiring
disclosure that have occurred.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies save for those reorganisation
activities done for the purpose of the Listing as set out in the
paragraph headed “Reorganisation” under the section headed
"History and Development, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in
the Prospectus.
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The Board is committed to establish and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance and adopt sound corporate governance
practices. The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”). The Directors strongly believe that reasonable and
sound corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders’ interests.

As the Shares were listed on 12 April 2017 (the “Listing Date”), the
Directors consider that since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report, the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the board committees of
the Company. Further details of the board committees of the Company
are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the
success of the Group by the direction and supervision of the Group's
business and affairs and the ultimate responsibility for day to day
management of the Group which is delegated to the management. To
this end, monthly financial and operational information are provided to
the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries. For significant matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board, the management must report back to and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board is responsible for, among others, performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code, which include:

(@) to develop and review our Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  review and monitor our Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

(e) to review our Group's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Board Composition

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprised seven Directors, of
whom four are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. Details of their composition by category are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee

Mr. Chan Chi Fai

Mr. Li Hok Yin (appointed on 21 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap

Mr. Wang Anyuan

All Directors have appropriate professional qualification or substantive
experience and industry knowledge. The Board as a whole has
achieved an appropriate balance of skills and experience. The
composition of the Board is in accordance with the requirement of
Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has accounting
professional qualification. More than one-third of the members of the
Board are independent non-executive Directors, which brings a fairly
strong independence element in its composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgment
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of
interests and management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 64 to 69 of
this report. Other than that Ms. Lo Pui Yee who is the wife of Mr. Fong
Chun Man, there are no family or other material relationships among
members of the Board.
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The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group's activities with
a view to developing its business and enhancing shareholders’ value.
The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-to-day
management of the Group as well as the implementation of the
Board's policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has established three committees, including the audit
committee (the "Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), on 23 March 2017 with delegated powers
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affair. Each of the
committees of the Board has been established with written terms of

reference.

The Board will conduct at least four regular meetings a year. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the Company'’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). The Chairman also meets with the
independent non-executive Directors at least once a year without the
presence of other executive Directors. Notices and agendas of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
convening the Board meeting. For all other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. All other schedules and
the relevant information of each Board and committee meeting are
generally made available to Directors or committee members at least
three days in advance. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the management whenever necessary.
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TEERBE
The attendance of each of the Directors at the Annual General %%%#Eﬁqﬁ%ﬁZHQ%ﬂiﬁ‘\ =
Meeting, Board Meeting and meetings of the Audit Committee, &% BZLZECe% THEESgZUR
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee held during the ?;E%éi%’;u%Zﬁfﬁ%—/A@ﬁDT :
year is set out below:
Attendance/Number of meetings
HERE, SRETAR
General Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting ~ Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee
EEgE RRAE EZgeE® BNZEEE FMEEE REZEE
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman) HEXKRE(FR) 1 5/5 - 22 1/1
Ms. Lo Pui Yee HEt 17 3/5 - - -
Mr. Chan Chi Fai REELE 17 4/5 - - -
Mr. Li Hok Yin (Note) F2EEE (M) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV EHTES :
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EECRAE 1/1 4/5 4/4 22 11
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap BBy EAE 1 4/5 4/4 - 1/1
Mr. Wang Anyuan ITRLEE n 4/5 4/4 212 -

Note: Mr. Li Hok Yin was appointed as executive Director on 21 June 2018.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
attended all the scheduled Board meetings to report matters arising
from corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
accounting and finance.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. At least 14 days’
notice should be given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters
considered and decisions reached are duly kept by the Company
Secretary at the meetings and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or Audit Committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Articles provide that at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years.

The non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. Each of the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company. The appointment letter of each of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors is for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other. The aforesaid appointment letters are subject
to termination provisions therein and the retirement and re-election
provisions in the Articles. Details of the appointment letters are
summarised in the Report of the Board of Directors on page 54 of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Up to the date of this report, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending training course or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations. Records of the training received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company Secretary
of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap and Mr. Wang Anyuan
were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors with
effect from 23 March 2017.
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The independent non-executive Directors are experienced
professionals with expertise in respective areas of accounting, finance,
industry knowledge and expertise. With their professional knowledge
and experience, the independent non-executive Directors serve an
important function of advising the senior management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders
and the Company as a whole; and participate in the Company'’s various
committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Fong Chun Man was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Chan Chi
Fai was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company on 23 March 2017.

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is
also responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and is
responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the implementation of the business strategies, policies
and objectives set out by the Board and is accountable to the Board
for the overall operations of the Group. These functions and
responsibilities are current being shared by the management team.

BOARD COMMITTEE

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 March 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The full terms of reference setting out details of
the authority, duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee is
available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap and
Mr. Wang Anyuan meanwhile Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management system, overseeing the balance,
transparency and integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
the application of financial reporting principles, reviewing the
relationship with the external auditor and its independence assessment
and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the
Company's accounting staff, their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditors’
remuneration, the independence of the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (the “HLB"), and recommended the Board to re-
appoint HLB as the Company’s auditors in the year ending 31 March
2019, which is subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held not less than twice a year and the external
auditor may request a meeting if they consider that one is necessary.

Details of the number of Audit Committee meetings held and Directors
attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of Meetings
and Directors’ Attendance” on page 23 in this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2017 in compliance with Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, which
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wang Anyuan, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert and Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr.
Wang Anyuan is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group,
review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals, and
ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The
full terms of reference setting out details of duties of the Remuneration
Committee is available on both the GEM website and the Company'’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by
reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks
into individual Director's competence, duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group in determining the exact
level of remuneration for each Director.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.

Details of the number of Remuneration Committee meeting held and
Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” on page 23 in this report.

Senior Management'’s remuneration
Senior Management's remuneration payment of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 falls within the following bands:

REFHNZESHWRERE  SFEREDE
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TIHNERAREE23EFE [FHRABRES
HEBR] —&F e

BREEE N
HBZE2018F3ANBLEFE  FEEDL
BEHFMZA N FATHEA :

my

HK$ Number of individuals
BT A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and senior
management members was based on their experience, level of
responsibility and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus
and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the Group
and the individual performance of the Directors and senior
management members.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23 March
2017 which comprised three independent non- executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert and Mr. Fong
Chun Man. Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The full terms of
reference setting out details of the authority, duties and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee is available on both the GEM website
and the Company's website.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the Policy as well as discussing matters
regarding the retirement and re-election of Directors.

Details of the number of Nomination Committee meeting held and
Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” on page 23 in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
ensuring that the Group's consolidated financial statements for each
financial year are prepared to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, the financial results and cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Board has adopted appropriate and
consistent accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable
judgments and estimates. The Directors are responsible for
maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with reasonable
accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity
movement of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 70 to 75 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration for the audit
and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to the
Group was as follows:

AT &
REE2018F3A3TBHIEFE » KAFEE
B A AN £ B IR (| AT R IEFFT RS AV Bl & 20
T

Services rendered HK$
RERHK BT
Annual audit service for the year ended  #HZE 201843 A31HILFEH 600,000
31 March 2018 FEE R
Audit and reporting accountant services £ FTHBERET & 1,700,000
relating to the Listing ¥R & 5T R AR 75
Total Hat 2,300,000
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS BEERREE
No corporate governance committee has been established and the HRARRWEKA I EXELREZESE £

Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company's policies,
practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior management,
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors will review the Group's corporate governance policies
and compliance with the CG Code each financial year and comply with
the “comply or explain” principle in our corporate governance report
which will be included in our annual reports upon the Listing.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirement as set out in the CG Code, which is summarised as
below:

The Policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
members’ appointment will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills.
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The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
in Corporate Governance Report every year and supervise the
implementation of the Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. The Company has confirmed, having
made specific enquiry of the Directors, that all the Directors have
complied with the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
March 2018 and up to the date of this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and
encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for
separate issues proposed at the general meetings. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
shareholder meeting.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors on relevant information
on the Group's business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements.

Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents

During the Listing Date to the date of this report, there has been no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
The Articles are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

General Meetings with Shareholders
The Company's annual general meeting will be held on 8 August 2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Convening of an extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders
also have the right to propose a person for election as a Director,
the procedures are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to
the operations and management of the Group to be discussed at
shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be sent to the
company secretary of the Company by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures
set out in “Convening of an extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders” above.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the
extent such information is publicly available to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board and communication relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
consumer complaints, to the Chief Executive Officer, in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the enquiries.

B R AEF

(a)

(b)

(c)

BERRERBEARRFEEAE

RBERAR - EARESZRA B
BERPRARRAFRBEA (HERART
BERAE EFORNER) +70 2 — 8T
—HRFALHRR - RMEARIERSE#E
BRANEFTGHUARNAMERLEEE
ko BREZSERBREIASG -
REABERTHEAZEMER: B
RERNIEZ % EREMIEARET -
WREREZ2KR -_+— KA EFER
BARZAE  AIE2BERKALRAIATT
ARAE  BE2ERALTHREZER
EARAKEMELENMASEEMKH
AREEHE - BRRITAEER —BAL
BEES ARARFAIRARR RBR
PRAEUEER] -

RERRASREZZBZERF

AABRABRREZAREAKERES R
EEMNEZENRRAE Lt - AR
HABBEBELFTRTARANAA
WE - BHES EZM R EER EX 1R
BEREBRAFBRRERAE ] EMNIE
FFARBRRERAE -

MESSFHEN

BERAERNEAEANETEEALL
AMAREM(RRANERERERES
SREBEANFENBAAREREA
FEBEENBMBERIEIETHRAE
Pl - SRMERIRGK)  AHEH
ARREARANRBEZIENERR

WARR T BREZEIENSER - AR
REFZMMER  BEHEHRER

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR 31



Corporate Governance Report
TRERKE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and investment public. The Company updates its shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its
annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the
Company (http://www.f8.com.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, our Company Secretary, is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board procedures
and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating communications among Directors as well
as with management.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company Secretary has
undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Group's systems of risk management and
internal control include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's
objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
The division/department head of each core business segment is
accountable for the conduct and performance of such segment within
the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and the Board
together, and reports directly to the Board.
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In the course of conducting the business of the Group, it is exposed to
various types of risks. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
following principal risks of the Group were identified and classified into
strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas
[ B B3,

Principal Risks
TERE

ERARASEEEKBRY  HAKRSERR -

REZE2018F3A3MBLEFE - KEBHT

&H%T@J‘I%H A"tﬁﬁww [BL B~ & E R
- B RER kA RER

Strategic Risks
market competition risk, reputation risk

B Rg

Operational Risks

LERR gEHttie TR ITH  BAMKEGTEH

Financial Risks

Lupriat mBEZRER - AR EE - SNERR

Compliance Risks

BHABEROGURIE - RSN REF @K - mSHFRE -

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers’ taste;

BERR

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

Liquidity risk, credit risk interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, inflation risk

- BAREER

Risk related to occupation safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to

employment; change of listing rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

&R HBRZ2MREABNER -

ESTEE

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the
Group and it has delegated to executive management to carry out the
risk identification and monitoring procedures. The objectives of the risk
management are to enhance the governance and corporate
management processes as well as to safeguard the Group against
unacceptable levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, among others,
(i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise which involves
assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks and the
development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; and
(i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management
plans and fine tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.

During the period from Listing Date to the date of this report, the
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.
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Although the Group does not maintain an internal audit function, the
Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing its effectiveness. In preparation for
the Listing, an independent internal control consultant has been
appointed to carry out a review of the implemented system and
procedures, including areas covering financial, operational and legal
compliance controls and risk management functions covering the
period from 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2016 and a follow-up review
was also carried out in March 2017 after the Company implemented
the recommended remedial measures. The Directors were satisfied
that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018 were implemented properly and that no
significant areas of weaknesses came into attention.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls and risk
management annually and further enhance the Group's internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and are
of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors
will continue to review at least annually the need for an internal audit
function.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the CG Code.
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Environmental, Social and"Governance Report

RE HEBRERRE

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report. The content contained herein focuses on
providing an overview of the environmental, social and governance
performance of its major operations in Hong Kong from 1 April 2017 to
31 March 2018. This also facilitates the Group to conduct thorough
performance review and evaluation to enhance the overall performance
results in the future. The reporting period is consistent with its financial
year.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The report summarizes our ESG performance from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018, and covers our management policies,
mechanisms and measures in place during the fiscal year 2018 with
respect to environmental protection, emission reduction, safe
workplace, personnel training and drills, supply chain management and
community investment and engagement. Focuses are placed on
certain aspects closely relevant to our shareholders and stakeholders,
and our full commitment to sustainable development of the Group as a
whole.

FEEDBACK

For details of our ESG performance as well as financial performance,
please visit our website at http://www.f8.com.hk and our Annual
Reports. Your comments and suggestions will be greatly appreciated,
and will help us make improvement. Please send your feedback and
enquiries to our Customer Service Manager at cs@f8.com.hk.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand its stakeholders and
engage them to ensure that improvements are implemented to its
products and services. We strongly believe that our stakeholders would
play a crucial role in sustaining the success of our business in the
challenging market.
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HKEx Compliance with the Listing Rules Routine meetings/regular and irregular
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RIE -HEKRESR

HE

Stakeholders Point(s) of concern Communication and responses
BEA BrEE BiERD e
Suppliers Fair competition/quality and price Business communication/procurement
Stable payment term contract/e-mail and telephone contact
HIER RFHF/ BE EER EBER/ BN,/ ETBHREERE
= E 1 R
Shareholders/ Financial performance Information published on websites of the
Investors Corporate governance Company/the stock exchange (e.g.
Market image announcements, circulars, quarterly results
reports, interim reports, annual reports, etc.)
Shareholders’ general meetings
Press releases
R REE PSR VAN TZHAE/%}% R 5 FT AL A ﬁﬁ?r
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MIHER FRE)
Ell N
#E e
Media & Public Corporate governance Explanation on key issues/press releases
Environmental protection
Human rights
LS5 JSE/NAA TEER BYERE B A FE
IR
N
Customers Product quality Business visits/routine meetings/regular and
Prohibited/restricted substance irregular communication meetings
management Audit feedback/self-managed performance
Environmental, safety and health feedback
management performance
Implementation performance of the code of
conduct (labour relations/labour rights/
compliance with laws and regulations)
Transparency and reliability of information
disclosure
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TRERMITER (L ERR B TR
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Employees Salaries and benefits/Labour relations/labour  The Company’s internal website/e-mail/
rights/working hour management/ employee suggestion box/Discussion
Workplace safety/rationality of rules and between employees and executives/surveys
regulations/Opinion communication (irregular)
channels
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Community

o
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RE HEBRERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Section A: Environmental

Protecting the environment and saving the planet are the
responsibilities of every of us on Earth. We believe a sustainable
business should put environmental protection into practice and
achieve corporate social responsibilities in actions. Our dedicated
efforts were proven effective as there was no material issue of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to the
environment for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Emissions

Reducing emissions for environmental protection is always the top
priority of the Group. The emissions data, which includes both the air
emissions and greenhouse gas emissions, is measured for better
understanding our environmental impacts and taking meaningful
actions in the future.

Air Emissions

The Group's emissions of air pollutants, which include oxides
(“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx"), etc., are mainly generated by usage
of vehicles for transportation of diesel oil and related products, and

also supplies of marine diesel oil.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the total air emissions produced by
the Group amounted to 2,626 kg, which dropped by approximately
3.39% when compared with the emissions last year.
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The reduction of air emissions was
contributable to our HK$1,890,475
investment in three vehicles of Euro V
standard during the year. The three
vehicles of Euro V standard meet the
European Union standards for
emissions, producing less carbon
monoxide, nitrogen oxides, sulphur
oxides and particulate matter than
the general vehicles.

Building on the success achieved this
year, we aim at continuing to alleviate
our adverse environmental impact by newly invested
reducing our air emissions in the

coming years.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are the main culprits of global warming. For
the sake of reducing greenhouse gas emissions, we embrace in driving
green practices in our day-to-day operations. We are committed to
environmental conservation, natural resource saving and waste
reduction.

An environmental protection policy was set up and circulated to ensure
that employees have taken environmental protection into consideration
in their daily operations. A paperless office was also advocated, a
reminder was posted near the printer, reminding employees to print
on double sides of each paper, and the single side printed paper
should be collected for re-use.

Thanks to our environmental conservation efforts, in the year ended 31
March 2018, the total greenhouse gas emissions were approximately
356 tonnes, which decreased by 5.65% when comparing with last year.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were mainly classified into three
scopes:

Scope 1:  Direct emissions from the usage of fuels by our vehicles,
Scope 2:  Energy indirect emissions, and
Scope 3:  Indirect emissions due to methane gas generation at landfill

by disposal of paper waste.
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Greenhouse gas emissions Comparison of greenhouse gas

BEREHHE

2017/18
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Due to our efforts in reducing paper usage, we achieved reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions in all three scopes.

Looking ahead, we expect the usage vehicles of Euro V standard will
not only reduce our air emissions, but also the greenhouse gas
emissions of Scope 1. Moreover, we post reminders next to the switch
of electronic devices starting from April 2018, in the hope of further
reducing greenhouse gas emissions of Scope 2, while still advocating
paperless office to keep our success in reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions of Scope 3.

Waste Management

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of sale and transportation
of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong. The business
operations of the Group produce no hazardous waste, e.g. chemical
wastes, clinical wastes and hazardous chemicals.

On the other hand, the Group promotes repairs and maintenance for
reducing non-hazardous waste. The non-hazardous waste produced by
the Group was mainly the paper waste, which amounted to 230 kg in
the year ended 31 March 2018. The paper wastes produced by us have
dropped rapidly by 29.23% when comparing with last year. The paper
wastes produced per employees also dropped by 28.11% to 11 kg per
employee this year. Although we have encountered difficulties in
obtaining data for waste production, we have implemented several
measures to reduce our waste production.

emissions by scope
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Recycling bins are placed in our office. A food waste decomposer ~ EIURFEM B L PRI A E o BIERD AR IRED
machine is also in place for handling food wastes. Reusable tableware &R ERIZRE 4 o 7] A& AR ZKME A #{$
is provided in our pantry to reduce wastage of discarded cardboard ' WHAIREBEZRERBARLER - H
food containers and tableware. Double-sided printing and reuse of /NS EIE M N M EREmM AR - A
single-side-printed paper are also advocated for reducing our paper  J& D BEARELE o tEoh - B PTSENE IR
waste. Moreover, usage of projector and whiteboard is encouraged to ~ F R ABUR E ST o

replace paper document.

The 3 Rs Principles we uphold: IR 3RIREN -

— — T —

Recyele

=1 U
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Use of Resources
The Group is committed to becoming a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise to promote environmental protection.

Energy Consumption

The Group is fully aware of the importance of conserving our electricity
resources. We encourage our employees to conserve energy and
resources in their daily operations, including the consistent “no-light
policy” during lunch time. Also, energy-efficient bulbs have been in
place to further improve the energy-saving results. In the daytime,
sunlight is used for illuminating if possible, and thus saving the energy
for bulbs. Furthermore, power saving mode is activated for our printers,
which are automatically switched to power-saving mode to reduce
energy consumption if they are idle for more than 15 minutes.

Thanks for our dedicated electricity saving efforts, the total energy
consumption for the financial year 2018 was 27,628 kWh, which
decreased by 34.13% when compared with last year. When considering
electricity consumption intensity, which is calculated by dividing the
total electricity consumption by the average number of employees
during the year, the consumption dropped by approximately 33.09% to
1,332 kWh in the fiscal year 2018.

Total Electricity Consumption

(kWh)
HMEEFHRER
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40,0004 1,800
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20,000 4—— a0
15,000 4 “00
10,000 4—— 400
50004 200
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Water Consumption & Packaging Materials
As the Group's business does not involve product manufacturing, its
operations have no special demand for water or packaging materials.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not come at
the expense of the environment. Therefore, we have been adopting
environmental friendly practice in various aspects. For example, we
invested in three vehicles of Euro V standard during the year,
advocating electricity saving and have been adopting paperless

RREBRER

DTV ERRFRE ©

working environment to reduce unnecessary paper wastage.

With the Group’s determination in minimizing the impacts of our

REBROEFEM D EEY

&

B 4

1

AEERR  CEZRTEVEAREAN
(B o Bt - HPIEES T EEBRERBER - Bl
e BN FRARE=-"WHRBERERENT
B IREE WERAERTERER

LR

operations on the environment, we have successfully achieved the  BRINEKIA TR
followings:

Aspects Targets

FH B

Air Emissions Reduce air emissions by 3.39%

ZE SRS R WA= R)S R 3.39%

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BEREEBENR

Paper Waste Production

BEREE

Paper Waste Intensity
MFRBEE

Energy Consumption

RERUHRE

Energy Consumption Intensity

ERBREE

Reduce GHG emissions by 5.65%
AR = RS 5.65%

Reduce paper waste by 29.23%
B RE 4% 29.23%

Reduce paper waste per employee by 28.11%
MO EHETRER28.11%

Reduce annual energy consumption by 34.13%
B FEREIRETE 34.13%

Reduce energy consumption per employee by 33.09%
WAETH B TaLRETE 33.09%
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Section B: Social — Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

Our business success depends greatly on the team spirit and cohesion
of the Group. As such, we adopt employee-oriented approach in
attracting, developing and retaining the best people to support our
business development. All employees are always treasured as the most
valuable assets of our Group. Together we achieve a new level of
achievement, and together we build a family.

Our Employees

Our Group consisted of 22 members, who are all working as full time
employees, as at 31 March 2018, and the composition of our members
is sect out below:

By Employment Type
RERERESE

100%

Full Time m Part Time ™ Temporary

S

By Age Group
BRERAER D E

18-25 m26-35 m36-46 m46-55 ®56-65
18-25p% 26-35p% 36-463% 46-558% 56-655%

We believe that our diverse and inclusive workforce enhances our
business by enabling innovative ideas and better communication. With
a total of approximately 41% of our employees serving the Group for 3
years or above, our efforts in maintaining a sustainable workforce has

paid off.
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Employee Benefits

The Group offers a comprehensive employee benefits package for all
our dedicated, talented staff. They are compensated fairly according to
their contributions, with reference to the market practice. Bonuses may
be awarded based on employees’ and the Group's performance.

Staff's performance is reviewed and assessed annually for the sake of
enhancing the strengths and addressing the development needs of
each of them, so that employees can not only succeed in their job, but
also build a career with us at F8. A transparent mechanism takes into
account various factors, including but not limited to, employees’ job
responsibilities, quality of work, capability and attitude, for annual pay
rise, bonus and promotion. Moreover, the Group provides attendance
incentives to promote morale and sense of belonging to the Group.

In addition, we contribute to the Mandatory Provident Fund and
employees’ compensation insurance with reference to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Medical allowances are also provided by the
Group to employees covering their clinic consultation, traditional
Chinese medicine, dentistry, etc..

Harmonious Workspace

We strive for building a harmonious and inclusive working environment,
free from any harassment and discrimination. The Group is active in
recruiting people of different nationalities, genders, ages and religions
in a fair and impartial principle, which is consistently applied in
recruitment, remuneration and benefits, holidays, training, promotion
opportunities, etc. We have zero tolerance for any form of
discrimination, including those related to gender, sexual orientation,
disability, age, ethnic group or race, family status or other personal
characteristics protected by laws. We aspire to providing a non-
discriminatory environment and assessing employees based on their
abilities, skills, qualifications and performance.

Work-life Balance of Employees

The Group understands that taking a break by its staff from time to
time is necessary for accomplishing the long-term goals of the Group,
and so, it strives to strike a proper work-life balance of its employees,
providing them 6 days’ work per week with eight working hours per
day and four working hours every Saturday. We appreciate the efforts
of employees during their working hours, and advocate a no-overtime-
working culture, so as to allow sufficient rest time for employees. In
case overtime is needed, overtime compensation is paid to employees
according to the actual additional working hours. Apart from annual
leave, employees are also entitled special leaves to meet their families’
needs, such as funeral leave, maternity leave and paternity leave, etc.
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Employee Activities

To further enhancing employees’ morale, employee activities are held
and welcome all employees to join. Apart from celebrating Christmas
together, employees are invited to Mei-Ngaa, the last worship to the
Earth God at the beginning of each new year, where employees are
entertained with cuisines and lucky draw. Employees are also welcome
to raise their opinions regarding employee activities to the
Administrative Department.

Talent Retention
With all the above benefits and welfare for employees, we successfully
achieved 92.39% total retention rate in this fiscal year.

BTES

RE-FPRSEILR  BMBRTEIESHY
EEZRBE T2 - RRERENEREIN - B
THREESMIES ] EFERFL AN
AR EREFYEXRNMMEERM - BT
HEARTRAREEHEE TEHNER -

BREAT
ERNLAMBEBRTHFEREN - BRI
FEKDERBRERI2.39% °

By Gender By Age Group
toq el b RERARDE
B Turnover Rate Retention Rate
o RE %
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80% —
60% |
40% —
20% —
O%- T T T — T — T l T l 1
Male Female 18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 56-65
S 7t
Health and Safety REHZZ

The Group is committed to providing a safe working environment for
its employees. The Group aims not only to meet the minimum
occupational health and safety standards required by law, but to
exceed them. All employees are required to abide by the staff manual
and the safety code. Moreover, regular safety trainings are provided
for all our drivers, so as to ensure that they all understand the safe work
procedure of handling the oil trucks.

The Group purchases medical insurances for all our staff against any
clinical, dental, hospital and surgery costs. The labour insurance and
housing provident fund are closely monitored and adjusted according
to the headcounts. In the light of these practices, no death or
permanent disability case was noted during the year ended 31 March
2018, and no lost day of work due to work injury was noted.
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Development and Training

We believe that employees are the most important assets, and training
can promote their sense of career success, increase their motivation
and reduce the turnover rate. In the fiscal year 2018, the Group mainly
provided informal on-the-job training to employees. The Group
provided also regular formal safety trainings for all its 9 drivers,
achieving 100% training rate for that employee category. Moreover,
the Group encourages employees to participate in the irregular
training sessions organized by government agencies on occupational
safety and environmental awareness.

Labour Standards

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group's
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour laws
and other relevant legislations that prohibit child labour and forced
labour. The Group does not employ any person below the age of
eighteen at its workplace. Any violence, with the purpose of
deliberately causing difficulties, threats and/or corporal punishment,
forcing employees to work is prohibited. The Group strives to ensure
that no employee is forced to work against his/her will, or work as
forced labour, or be made subject to corporal punishment or coercion
of any type relating to work.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in relation to labour
standards.

Communication with Employees

The Group encourages the management to dialogue with employees,
listen to them through various channels, and solve their difficulties to
achieve harmonious labour relationship. The Group maintains an
employee complaint handling policy to ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place where employees lodge complaints. An
employee who believes his/her personal interests are violated unduly,
or has different opinion on the Company’s management practices or
finds a case of violation of the Company'’s rules may lodge a complaint
or consultation to the relevant party or department. If the individual or
department in question cannot provide a satisfactory solution, the
complaint will be escalated to ensure a clear feedback. Through both
top-down and bottom-up communication, the Group is confident that
harmonious relationship with its employees is achieved.
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Section B: Social — Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group established a transparent and independent procurement
process aimed at promoting competitiveness and serving the interests
of our shareholders and other stakeholders. The Group aims at
maintaining a vertically integrated supply chain management system
by integrating procurement resources and implementing the supplier
selection and management mechanism, in a bid to offer
comprehensive solutions to meet customer needs.

A list of selected suppliers is set up. Before a supplier is approved for
inclusion into the list, the Group reviews its background (including the
permits, qualifications and licenses obtained), product pricing and the
terms and conditions of supply.

To ensure the quality of raw materials purchased by the Group, the
Group takes sample inspection on suppliers and requires them
providing the petroleum ingredient list for inspection. In case of any
validity problem with the permit, the Group may conduct further due
diligence investigation or preclude the supplier in question from the
list of selected suppliers.

The list of selected suppliers is reviewed annually. Such review involves
assessment of the suppliers’ material quality, delivery speed, customer
service, pricing and discounts, etc. The suppliers are encouraged to
demonstrate their corporate social responsibilities by complying with
corporate social responsibility codes as well as business ethics, with
respect to workplace operations, marketing activities, social contacts
and environmental responsibilities. High standards of morality which
include prohibition of provision and acceptance of bribes and/or other
unfair benefits are adopted by the Group. Information of business
activities, business structure, financial status and financial performance,
etc. should be disclosed only in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has been
cooperating with 102 Hong Kong suppliers and a supplier operating in
Taiwan. As such, the risk of supply shortage and failure to manage the
supplier quality is mitigated.
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Product Responsibility

The Group’s business led by its experienced management team is
committed to offering higher-value services to customers, in order to
enhance the Group’'s competitiveness and achieve mutual success
between the Group and customers. In order to ensure product quality,
careful supply quality inspection is performed as mentioned above.
Moreover, to ensure the service quality, regular training is provided to
all drivers for the job-related skills and knowledge.

With the above measures, the Group successfully recorded zero
complaints regarding products and services in the year ended 31
March 2018.

Intellectual Property Right and Customer Data Protection
The Group is committed to safeguarding intangible assets and
confidential information of its customers. The Group has strict
guidelines on the handling of intellectual property related products,
including patents, copyrights, trademarks, technology and trade
secrets. Any employee found to have improperly handled intellectual
property will be subject to disciplinary action. As the Group
understands the importance of protecting the privacy of customers, it
requires all employees handling the confidential information in good
faith and confidentiality.

Complaint Mechanism

Various channels have been set up for customers to express their
comments and recommendations, such as face-to-face communication
with employees, phone call or even through social media app. Any
customer dissatisfied with the Group’s products can also directly
complain to our administrative officer, who will report to the Chief
Executive Officer to work out a solution, if necessary.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations relating to product
responsibility.

48 F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2018

EmEE
AEENEBHREEREENEEBFREL
& BORWEEPESBENRYE - R
AREBENGHS S - 2R AEERTPERAE
MR - REREMEE  AEESW XA
AETHAHRELEERSE I - BERRE
HE  AKELSMERKEHRE THERBENK
BE K K80 TE HRSE I

B LR AEBEREE201853 A 31
B IE RIS IGE fn MRS TR

ABERETFERRE
AEEHNRERBELEENEFPHNREE
#o AREHRENBEEBENER B
BH AR R BT R R S E AR
HFES] - TR ERETERENHEENE
THRZICRED - ARAKE T RRER
FRAMNEZNE HEBRKE2EETUREHE
RERAERREEHR -

RERHH
AEEERYEERENBEEPERERME
o PINESTHHEAER TERIAER
BB RRBERIEFRM - SEMNEFPEAR
SEMNERBNRENMTT - TR ERATTR
ARG - (TRABSHEMER FIHRITHAE
AR HORTTER

HZ2018F3831HILFE  MEEREER
HEMBETEBENBAEERMEENEBR



Environmental, Social and"Governance Report

RE HEBRERRE

Anti-corruption

The Group prohibits any form of bribery and corruption. An anti-
corruption policy was established to ensure that all its business
activities are conducted on a professional, honest and fair basis. The
Group has formulated a system for preventing commercial bribery and
corruption. In the course of business activities, employees are required
not to directly or indirectly provide, promise, demand or accept any
improper interests, or involve in other dishonest or illegal acts or
violation of the related regulations. These prohibited activities include
offering or accepting bribes, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
other criminal offences, as well as other improprieties such as provision
of illegal political contributions; improper charitable donation or
sponsorship; provision or acceptance of unreasonable gifts,
entertainment or other improper interests; infringement of business
secrets, trademark rights, patent rights, copyright and other intellectual
property rights; and unfair competition, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistle-blowing Channels and Policies

The complainant or whistle-blower may provide the facts to the
Administrative Department, which will investigate the case after the
complaint is accepted. The whistle-blower who involves in falsification
of facts, counterfeit of evidence or abuse of the whistle-blowing
mechanism to frame up and implicate others shall also bear the
corresponding legal liability. The Group will take necessary legal action
in case of any identified corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering activities to protect the interests of the all stakeholders.
Under such mechanism and measures, in the fiscal year 2018, none of
the Group or its employees was involved in any corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering case, nor did the Group identify
or receive a whistle-blowing of any such unethical act on the part of the
Group or its employees.

Section B: Social — Community

The Group adheres to the concept of giving back to the community to
showcase the spirit of service as one of its core values. The Group is
not only striving to reduce its adverse impacts on the environment, but
is also committed to providing a safe and equal working environment
for all its employees, and moreover, ensuring the quality of products
and services to protect the interests of customers. The Group believes
working as a responsible corporate is essence for giving back to the
community. In the coming years, the Group will continue paying efforts
in the above mentioned aspects and keeping the success of this year.
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE EEEH
The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and R4 HIR] - A& B NABEHR - BIF -
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating to  f#FEH%Z % - B THA| EREEEREER
emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards, product  E¥ARNEEA EAFENEAIEERERD
responsibility and anti-corruption during the reporting period. 150 °
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIEYE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2018 Unit
HE2017%  HE2018%F
3A31H 3H31H
Emissions PRk IHEE LLEE By
Air Emissions 22 RS R HE R
Total air emissions RS BENEE 2,718,306 2,626,176  gram 7
Nitrogen oxides —&1t 2,533,974 2,448,091 gram 7%
Sulphur oxides kE=Rlet) 2,129 2,056 gram 7%
Respiratory suspended particles AR A SR F R T 182,203 176,028 gram %,
Greenhouse Gas Emissions = RSN
Total greenhouse gas emissions BERBHRES 376,942 355,638 kilogram 7%
Scope 1 Emissions from 51k 8L ARE 348,956 337,129  kilogram F 5%
Fossil Fuel Consumption SHFERBEDL
Scope 2 Emissions from 52K 8T EREN 26,426 17,406  kilogram F 52
Electricity Consumption R
Scope 3 Emissions from ;IS IREFEEEAN 1,560 1,104 kilogram F52
Disposal of Paper Waste HERR
Waste Management REEWEIE
Paper Waste g4 325 230 kilogram F52
Paper Waste Intensity BEREE 15 11 kilogram/
employee
FTr/EE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2018  Unit
Use of Resources ERERA BZE2017% BZE20184F
3A31H 3A31H
LLFE LLFE B
Electricity Consumption BhHEME
Total Electricity Consumption ERERE 41,946 27,628 kWh FE B
Electricity Consumption Intensity BIHEERE 1,990 1,331 kwh/
employee
TRE,
’EE8
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE
OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 30
March 2016.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange by way of placing and public offer on 12 April 2017.

In connection with the listing of the Shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, the companies comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”). Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group on 22 March 2017. Further details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History and
Development, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The principal activities of the Group
are the operation of the business of the sale and transportation of
diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 and the financial position of the Group as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 76 and 77.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four years is set out on page 148 of this report.

AKAREEMASRES Z2HREER A EEE
Z£2018F3A3N BIEFE 2 EEZYBME -

TEEARROBE

KRARR2016F3ANBRIBEAREERS
BHEaMR L BEREER AR -

RATRM N 2017 F4 8128 EBRERA
FAZERBEZ AT GEM £ »

MARBBRORBZIGEM LM E » A%
EIREENARETEA(EMA]D - BREE
M ARBR017F3IA2EK ABEREEIR
BEHE TBI B AR MIEIR A G - EAME—
BENBRERT [ELHEEE SAKEE
ZeRE] —&D o

FEES

ARBZ X BEHRREER - HEB AR
IZEDERNGEVBRRME - AEE T
REBRBETEMMABEERAOHE MER X
% o

EBERRE

ANEBEHZE2018FEIAN AL FENTEE
RA RN Z B AEBO TSRS R R E B
WMKRFETONTIE

EETEZMEAE2018F3A3N B LFEIR
FHEMBE. ©

MR
AEEWE TR BENF 2 EEAREER
B EEERRAREE148E -

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR 51



Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies save for those reorganisation
activities done for the purpose of Listing as set out in the paragraph
headed "Reorganisation” under the section headed "History and
Development, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in the Prospectus.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT
VENTURES

Apart from the reorganisation in relation to the Listing as disclosed in
the Prospectus, there were no other significant investments held,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures during the year ended 31 March 2018.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

On the Listing Date, the Company'’s shares were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. A total of 200,000,000 new shares with nominal
value of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at HK$0.32 per
share for a total of approximately HK$64.0 million. The net proceeds
received by the Company from the Share Offer, after deduction of the
underwriting commission and related expenses in connection with the
Share Offer, was approximately HK$45.1 million. The net proceeds,
upon receipt by the Company after Listing, has been deposited at a
bank and such net proceeds will be applied in the manners consistent
with the proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWING

Particulars of bank overdrafts and bank borrowings of the Group at 31
March 2018 are set out in notes 26 and 27, respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 31
March 2018.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 78 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not have any reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2018 there has been no
purchase, sale or redemption of any Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee

Mr. Chan Chi Fai

Mr. Li Hok Yin (appointed on 21 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap

Mr. Wang Anyuan

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles, providing
that every Director shall be retired at least once every three years.
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Confirmation of Independence

Each independent non-executive Director has given the Company an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and meet the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS

OF APPOINTMENT

(a) Executive Directors
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company and shall continue thereafter unless
terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms
of the service contract, the service contract may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice served by either party on the
other. The term of service of a Director is subject to retirement by
rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

(b) Independent Non-executive Director

Each of the independent non-executive Director has signed a

letter of appointment with the Company on 23 March 2017.

Under the terms of the appointment letter, the appointment shall

be for a term of one year commencing from the Listing Date and

which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice

served by either party on the other. The term of service of a

Director is subject to the provisions on retirement by rotation of

Directors as set out in the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to
have a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(other than contracts expiring or determinable by the Company or its
subsidiaries, as applicable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the benchmarking of the
market. The Company also looks into individual Director’s competence,
duties, responsibilities, performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 64 to 69 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during or at the end of the year ended 31 March 2018.

As of 31 March 2018, no contract of significance had been entered into
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not enter into or have any
management and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole
or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of any business and interest of the Directors nor the
controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or
may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the internal control measures
in relation to managing actual or potential conflict of interest of the
Group have been properly implemented.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

On 23 March 2017, Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited
(being controlling shareholders of the Group) entered into a deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company (for itself and each of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which each
of Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited has irrevocably and
unconditionally, jointly and severally, warrants and undertakes with the
Company that, immediately upon the Share Offer becoming
unconditional, each of them shall not, and shall procure each of his/its
close associates and any company directly or indirectly controlled by
Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited (except for the
members the Group) shall not, except through any member of our
Group, directly or indirectly (whether on its own account or with each
other or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, or
as principal or agent, through any body corporate, partnership, joint
venture or other contractual arrangement and whether for profit or
otherwise), carry on, engage in, invest or acquire or hold any rights or
be interested or otherwise involved in any business that is similar to or
in competition directly or indirectly with or is likely to be in competition
with any business currently and from time to time engaged by our
Group in Hong Kong and any other country or jurisdiction to which our
Group carries on business or grants franchise from time to time
("Restricted Business”).

Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited further undertake that
when he/it or his/its close associates other than any member of the
Group is offered or becomes aware of any new project or business
opportunity (“New Business Opportunity”) directly or indirectly to
engage or become interested in a Restricted Business, he/it (i) shall
promptly notify our Company of such New Business Opportunity in
writing, refer the same to our Company for consideration first and
provide such information as may be reasonably required by our
Company to make an informed assessment of such New Business
Opportunity; and (ii) shall not, and shall procure that the Controlled
Persons or Controlled Company not to, invest or participate in any
such New Business Opportunity unless such New Business Opportunity
is declined by our Company, or our Company does not proceed with
such New Business Opportunity within 30 business days from the date
of the written notice (of if requested by our Company in writing, such
30 business days period may be extended to a maximum of 60
business days), and the principal terms of which he/it and/or his/its
close associates invest or participate in are no more favourable than
those made available to our Company.
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For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited have both confirmed
to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition from the Listing Date up to the date of this report. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non- Competition have been complied by each of Mr. Fong Chun Man
and Grand Tycoon Limited and duly enforced since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company'’s Listed
Securities

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2018 there has been no
purchase, sale or redemption of any Company’s listed securities.

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or (i) to be entered into the register required to
be kept therein, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:
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Number of Percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest shares held shareholding
EEHE 270 131 BERGEE BREDL
Mr. Fong Chun Man Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 448,000,000 56%
(Long position)
& A RELEE R (1) 448,000,000 56%
(5F&)
Ms. Lo Pui Yee Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 448,000,000 56%
(Long position)
BimmEat R E R (e 2) 448,000,000 56%
(#F&)
Notes: MI&E
1. The shares are held by Grand Tycoon Limited, the equity interest of which is owned 1. ZERNDBETERARIFE - H100%REHTE

as to 100% by Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr. Fong Chun Man is deemed to be interested
in all the shares held by Grand Tycoon Limited for the purpose of Part XV of SFO.

2. Ms. Lo Pui Yee is the spouse of Mr. Fong Chun Man and is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the shares which Mr. Fong Chun Man is interested for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company has any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part V of the SFO
(including interests and/or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) to be entered
into the register required to be kept therein, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders
and other persons in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 March 2018, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or were deemed to have interests in shares or underlying shares which
(i) were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or (ii) which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the
GEM Listing Rules or, (iii) who will be, directly or indirectly, be
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any member of our Group.

FERRREMATREADTREBEE
BHRG  HEROREEZPIHERR
-}
R2018F3F31H - BESZAHA - ALK
REIEERERTTHRABRIN RAABRG
SRR D P E SR A A ELS - M)A
SRERARRIRIEE S & B E 155128 3361518
EAFENELM  K(HBEFHRHAEK
Bl 55 XV 38 55 2 ]2 35 BB 16 30 & GEM 71 43 Bl
s F AR E - 3k (i) 15 B 1 ok R A B A5 4
AR BB TEREEEMAKE A B
RREG ERANEMEERIAEE 10% 5 £
PHEERERE -

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest shares held shareholding
EENS B8 5% ERtE BERGEE ERESL
Grand Tycoon Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 448,000,000 56%
(Long position)
REARAF EmmEa A () 448,000,000 56%
(FE)
Ms. Lo Pui Yee Interest of spouse (Note 2) 448,000,000 56%
(Long position)
BmEz LT BBz (Bt 2) 448,000,000 56%
(FE)
Notes: M&E
1. The shares are held by Grand Tycoon Limited, the equity interest of which is owned 1. ZEROBEFERARFEE - H100%KEHFE

as to 100% by Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr. Fong Chun Man is deemed to be interested
in all the shares held by Grand Tycoon Limited for the purpose of Part XV of SFO.

2. Ms. Lo Pui Yee is the spouse of Mr. Fong Chun Man and is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the shares which Mr. Fong Chun Man is interest for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors have not
been notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme in
which certain eligible participants including, among others, the
Directors and employees of the Group may be granted options to
subscribe for Shares on 23 March 2017 (the “Adoption Date”). The
share option scheme became unconditional upon the Listing Date.
Under the terms of the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant
options to eligible participants to subscribe for Shares.

No share options were granted since the Adoption Date up to 31
March 2018, and there was no share option outstanding as at 31 March
2018. As at 31 March 2018, the Company had 80,000,000 shares
available for issue under the Scheme, representing 10% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Competing Interests

The Directors confirm that none of the Controlling Shareholders or the
Directors and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) is interested in any business apart from the business
operated by our Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with our Group’s business during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Guotai Junan Capital Limited (“Guotai Junan”) to be
the compliance adviser. As informed by Guotai Junan, neither Guotai
Junan nor any of its directors or employees or close associates had any
interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if
any) or otherwise in relation to the Company which is required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing
Rules except for the participation of Guotai Junan as the sponsor in
relation to the Listing and the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and Guotai Junan on 8 September 2016.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all of the Directors complied with such required standard
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions as at the date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Director is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributed to the Group's largest and the five largest customers
accounted for 10.8% and 40.5% (2017: 13.9% and 50.3%) of the total
revenue of the Group, respectively. For the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group's purchase from the largest and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 38.3% and 98.5% (2017: 52.4% and 98.1%) of the total
purchases of the Group, respectively. At no time during the year ended
31 March 2018 did the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in the
Group's major customers or suppliers as disclosed above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not enter into
any transactions which need to be disclosed as connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the material related party transactions are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements of this report. These related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Remuneration to key management personnel of the Group, including
Directors described in notes 13 and 14 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements are continuing connected transactions exempt
from the connected transaction requirements under Rule 20.93 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Amounts due from to a shareholder described in
note 29 to the Group's consolidated financial statements have been
repaid before listing of the Company on 12 April 2017.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high
level of corporate governance standards and will review and improve
the corporate governance practices and standards constantly. Since
the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2018, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code Provisions”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20
to 34 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws
of Cayman Islands or the Articles which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, A directors’ liability insurance
was currently in place to protect the Directors against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 22 employees in Hong Kong (2017:
22 employees in Hong Kong). The remuneration package our Group
offered to our employees includes salary, bonuses and other cash
subsidies. In general, our Group determines employees’ salaries based
on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. Our Group
has designed an annual review system to assess the performance of
our employees, which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to
salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion
and analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position can be
found in the management discussion and analysis set out on pages 7
to 19 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this report.

62 F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2018

TEER
RABBNEREBREKENEEEREZ
B WETHRITERELCEEARATHREZE
o RKQNABEMHHREZ218%3 A 31
HAIE— B & GEM 48 BB 8% 15 Frak &
BRI ST ANESC ([P RIRIZ]) »

ARRFRAZ EREEERVFBHNAR
ETR20EMENEEEARSE °

ARABRFRE

RBEARRAI AFESHNER MAESHA
BEARERY KRR HFFGEM LR
AIFRENTRE ARFERE -

BErRBEEE

B8 BY B AR R IR M AU SR A R AR L
IRRARRR LB EHRD 2 BB EER
SBOERIEHERE -

BERFREKRX
BE018F3ANELFE  ARAANE
RBEEETRE - AREESEZRRRY
3R T A B AR B OB A R B A o

EBE K SR

R2018F3A3MH AEEREEHEE2E
BEQO7F  WNEEHENAEER)AEE
MESRENFINEL BEFE  EaAREM
Remit- —RME  AEERESEENE
B BNMFEEEHS ASECHEFE
AT AT (AR B MR - S T2 M
RAFE  CARFRRTEREAE -

E 3401

BRAFEARRRIFEBHAFEERANEH
RO T R0 ARBEZEE NI BEHRRE
BAREAXRRHIINAFRE7E19BAEDN
EEE RN o AR wmEAARE — B

e



Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held on
8 August 2018, the notice of which shall be sent to the shareholders of
the Company in accordance with the Articles, the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 3
August 2018 to 8 August 2018, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of the shares of the Company will be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 May 2018, the Company and Virtue Ever Limited (“Virtue Ever”)
entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Virtue Ever has conditionally agreed to sell a 10% equity interest in
the China Forest Food Limited, together with its subsidiaries, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB1.5 million (including the earnest
money of RMB1.0 million which has been paid in cash) (the
"Acquisition”). The completion of the Acquisition under the Acquisition
Agreement is subject to certain customary conditions precedent to be
fulfilled. Please refer to the announcement of the Company date 17
May 2018 for details.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2018
has been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who shall
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offered themselves
for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Chun Man (“"Mr. Fong”), aged 38, is our founder, executive
Director, Chairman, compliance officer, member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, and is responsible for our
Group's overall corporate management and business development
strategies. Mr. Fong was appointed as an executive Director on 23
March 2017. Mr. Fong established our Group in early 2005 and
appointed as director of Great Wall (International) Oil Limited in
December 2005.

Mr. Fong has over 10 years of experience in the sale and transportation
of diesel oil and related products. Prior to the establishment of Great
Wall (International) Oil Company and Great Wall (International) Oil
Limited, Mr. Fong was the general manager of Yuk Shing Engineering
Co., Limited, a construction company which principally carries on the
business of site formation and earthworks in Hong Kong, for
approximately five years. He was responsible for its daily operation,
including but not limited to submitting tender proposals and
undertaking construction projects, managing its corporate accounting
and administrative matter, monitoring the logistics of projects and
contacting suppliers and customers, such as authorised agents
appointed by the Oil Majors. Mr. Fong has also been the director of
Jet Good Limited since April 2005, a company whose principal business
involves the provision of construction materials and related logistics
services in Hong Kong, where he has gained experience in business
operation and management expertise.

Mr. Fong has completed the Hong Kong Advanced Level Examination
in July 1999 and has been a committee member of the 13th and 14th
sessions of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Guangzhou City Yue Xiu District Committee (FBIARBUG 2 & E
MNHHFERZEZ EE) since May 2008 and the committee member of the
13th session of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Guangzhou Committee (FBIARBUAHE EZEINTEZ EE) since
January 2017. Mr. Fong is the director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Pok Oi Hospital, a non-profit hospital in Hong Kong since
2012 and the director of the planning and procedure department of
the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol since March 2015. He is also the
current honorary president of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
Shatin branch. Mr. Fong is the spouse of Ms. Lo.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Ms. Lo Pui Yee (“"Ms. Lo"), aged 39, was appointed as our executive
Director, and vice chairlady on 22 August 2016. Ms. Lo is responsible
for supervising the overall administration and operation of our Group.
She has more than 14 years of experience in the business
administration and marketing area. Ms. Lo joined our Group in June
2016.

Ms. Lo has completed the Hong Kong Advanced Level Examination in
July 1999. Since June 2002, Ms. Lo has gained exposure in the daily
administration, operation and executive management in Alpha
Communications Company, which carries on the business of the
provision of telecommunication and internet services, and has been
responsible for supervising the business development and corporate
governance. Since 2011, Ms. Lo has been a director and shareholder of
Luxe Tuxedo Limited, an apparel company offering high-end men’s
formal suit and attire in Hong Kong, responsible for overseeing the
administrative function, enhancing communication channels between
management and staff and product branding. Ms. Lo is the spouse of
Mr. Fong.

Saved as disclosed above, she was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Chan Chi Fai (“Mr. Chan"), aged 37, was appointed as our
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 22 August 2016 and
is responsible for the operation of our fleet of tank wagon and business
strategies implementation. Mr. Chan has joined Great Wall
(International) Oil Company since September 2010.

Mr. Chan obtained a higher certificate and a higher diploma in Civil
Engineering from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in
July 2007 and July 2009, respectively. Mr. Chan also completed the
certificate for Safety Supervisor (Construction Industry), Safety Training
Techniques Course and Safe Working Cycle Course in February 2002,
January 2009 and January 2009, respectively. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Chan worked as a foreman in Yuk Shing Engineering Co.,
Limited from March 2000 to February 2007 whose principal business is
construction and engineering, responsible for general site operation
for drainage work and earthwork. From March 2007 to July 2010, Mr.
Chan joined Vibro (H.K.) Limited and was promoted as a geotechnical
field technician, whose principal business is construction, responsible
for ground investigation arrangement and carrying out necessary
testing.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Hok Yin (“Mr. Li"), aged 40, was appointed as our executive
Director on 21 June 2018. Mr. Li is Co-chairman and an Executive
Director of Taung Gold International Limited (Stock Code: 621) since 8
January 2010. Mr. Li was previously the Investment Manager of Cheever
Capital Management (Asia) Ltd from September 2007 to December
2009. Mr. Li was the Territory Manager of Ecolab Ltd, a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, from March 2004 to July 2007.
During the period from July 2002 to January 2004, Mr. Li served as an
Engineer of Concord Precision Metal Parts & Tools Pty Limited. Mr. Li
also obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2000. Mr. Li has experience in business
management, investment research and portfolio management, and in
the coal mining industry.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (“"Mr. Chui”), aged 61, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Chui is
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chui obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in commerce from the
Concordia University in June 1978 and was awarded the Medal of
Honour by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2014. Mr. Chui is currently a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants since June 1991 and the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants since May 1989. Mr. Chui has over 35 years of
experience in the accounting industry and is the founder of a Hong
Kong accounting firm, Robert Chui & Co. since August 1991.
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Mr. Chui has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited, (Hong Kong
stock code: 417), National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited, (Stock Code: 8228), Wing Lee Property Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 864) since April 1999, May 2009 and February 2013,
respectively. Since December 2014, Mr. Chui has been appointed as a
non-executive director of GTIl Holdings Limited, formerly known as
Addchance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344) and retired on May
2017. From May 2015 to March 2016, Mr. Chui was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8148). Mr. Chui has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of PPS International (Holdings)
limited (Stock Code: 8201) since June 2015.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap (“Mr. Kwong"”), aged 42, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Kwong is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Kwong obtained a Bachelor’s degree in electronics from The Open
University of Hong Kong in December 2001, a diploma in information
technology from the School of Professional and Continuing Education
of The University of Hong Kong in June 2004 and a master degree in
information technology from Charles Sturt University, Australia in
November 2005.

Since September 1997, Mr. Kwong has been working with MTR
Corporation Limited, and is currently a senior technician. During his
employment with MTR Corporation Limited, Mr. Kwong had been
selected for secondment to Thales Information System from November
2003 to November 2005. In June 2011, Mr. Kwong joined Talent Gain
International Limited, a subsidiary of WLS Holding Limited (Stock
Code: 8021) as a project manager, responsible for the project
development and management for ore, mining, petrochemical and
precision metal industry. From December 2013 to October 2015, Mr.
Kwong was appointed as a non-executive director of Wealth Glory
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8269), whose principal activities involve
manufacture and sale of fresh and dried noodles, investment holding
in coal trading business, trading of natural resources and commodities
and money lender. From November 2015 to August 2016, Mr. Kwong
was re-designated as an executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings
Limited.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

EREDRIB 199944 A ~ 200945 A %2013
F2AREZTASIEEHKE (EER)BRAT
(BBBRDARI :417) HBRELERES
FRAT (B RSE : 8228) ~ skFHERE AR
2NE] (BRDARS : 864) BN IERITES - B
2014 F12 A1 EXEEZAAEZEER
RAR(BIEE=mEB AR A (BRH R :
3344)) ZIEBITEE - W 2017 F5 AFHE -
B2015F5 AZE 2016437 - EXLEELZT A
BiEREEEERAR (DR : 8148) 258
STIFHITEE - B2015F 6 A BEAES
EEBHIER AR AR (MR - 8201) 2B
SNIEHITES ©

R EXXPRINEEE SN - NGB E=F AW ENME
LM ABEEESR -

BPfE 4 ([BEE]) - 425% - R2017F 3 A
VBHEZERBRMNBILIENTES - BELE
RIEBREEIFERFMEEEKE -

B AER2001F12A8BELAHAERNES
FEIPEL+ER - P2004F6 B BAER
FEBBRIEEMBIBEUR - AR 2005
FABRMNEBE LA ERBEEEMNR
FIE LA o

B1997 F9 A BEEE—ERBEBHEER
NEIEE - BRIASARKNE - REBEKE
IRA RERLERRT - B 20034F 11 A = 2005 4F 11
A B % £ ¥ # & FThales Information
System © FA2011F 6 A + BB % A4 hn A BL B BB
BRAF - BEERZERBRAR(FEROGR
L8021 MMB AR - IEEEELE - AR
BA B At IRETSBETENER
BEERLEE - 52013 F12HE2015F10A -
BEEEZEASEZRBRAR(FERNG
5% 8269) MISEMTTE S - BB ZERBER A
AT ELEEBRIERE RIHE N KM -
RERE HEBHIREER - RKABRKE®
B UNMBEA - B2015F 11 AE201648
A BEAEEATASEERARARNRIT
5=

B EXFTIREESN - RNBE=FRLEMNME
] LR RETE SR -

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR 67



Biographies of Board of Directors-and Senior Management

EEEREREEREBE

Mr. Wang Anyuan (“Mr. Wang”), aged 46, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Wang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor's degree specialising in maritime and
communication accounting from the Shanghai Maritime University in
July 1994. He joined China Merchants Group and served as the
manager of the audit (risk assurance) department from September
1996 to July 2001, the chief financial officer of China Merchants
Securities (HK) Company Limited from July 2001 to January 2007 and
general manager of audit (risk assurance) department of China
Merchants Finance Holdings Company Limited from February 2007 to
February 2008. In April 2008, Mr. Wang served BOCOM International
Holdings Company Limited as an executive director and head of China
operation, responsible for the equity sales. From June to December
2009, Mr. Wang served CITIC Securities International as a director and
head of China operation, responsible for their securities business and
had been the account executive of CITIC Securities International
Company Limited from January 2010 to November 2012. In October
2012, Mr. Wang served as a deputy head of brokerage department of
China Investment Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited,
responsible for securities trading. In February 2013, Mr. Wang served
as a responsible officer of China Investment Securities International
Brokerage Limited of Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) regulated activities
as defined in the SFO. Since May 2013, Mr. Wang joined Orient
Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as a business director of the
brokerage department. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an executive
director, compliance officer and authorised representative of Code
Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8153) since September
2015 and retired in February 2018. Mr. Wang is licensed with the SFC
as a representative of Orient Securities (Hong Kong) Limited to carry
out type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity and as a
representative of Orient Futures (Hong Kong) Limited to carry out type
2 (dealing in futures contract) regulated activity.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographies of Board of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Cheung Lee Kwok (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 40, is our chief
operation officer and is responsible for overseeing the daily operation
and general financial management of our Group. Mr. Cheung has
joined our Group since April 2016.

Mr. Cheung has over 10 years of experience in operational
management. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in mathematics from
the National Central University, Taiwan, in June 2002. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as an information technology engineer
in Di Sheng Computer Limited (34 J§ AR 2 5 *) from March 2004
to July 2005, and from January 2007 to May 2007, responsible for
conducting products testing and providing customer support. From
June 2007 to April 2010, Mr. Cheung worked as an engineer in
Chunghwa Picture Tubes, Ltd. (F £ B & & 9 & R 2 7)) whose
principal business is involved in the optoelectronic industry (Taiwan
stock exchange, Stock Code: 2475, and Luxembourg stock exchange,
ISIN code: US17133M7092), responsible for supervising the production
operation and quality control, as well as managing technicians and
support staffs for improving operational efficiency. Mr. Cheung then
worked in the sales of diesel oil related business in Great Wall
(International) Company for six years from April 2010 to March 2016,
responsible for the daily operations of the sole proprietorship.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai (“Ms. Leung”), aged 53, was appointed as the
Group's company secretary on 26 October 2017. Ms. Leung has been a
director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a company secretarial
services provider) since April 2016, the managing director of K E
Management & Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since August 2015
and an independent non-executive director of North Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0061) since April 2014. Ms. Leung was a
director of KCS Hong Kong Limited from August 2008 to October
2014.

Ms. Leung was admitted as a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (currently known as Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants) in the United Kingdom in July 1995. Ms. Leung
was also admitted as a fellow member of the CPA Australia in May
2004 and is currently a member of HKICPA. Ms. Leung obtained a
master’s degree in commerce from the University of New South Wales,
Australia in November 2002.

* for identification purpose only
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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31/F, Gloucester Tower B
‘ The Landmark IR
HLB Bl #7 &<t 8% F % %A R 3 11 Pedder Street STH115
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited Central B ES
Hong Kong HRTITREIE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of F8
Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
76 to 147, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BHRENSE

FARE SR

MiEs S ELRERMOE LN - RAY
A AN ERRNBHBAEENEE - &
HRIB R R MBS RERAMBRERLA
BRIBETAEN - RMTEHELFRRH
EHNER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES NARERREN SR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 5 BWRIRRE R

Refer to Notes 5(a) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B2 R E BTSRRI FE 5(a) & 20 LA R AR & B S MR M5t 4
&R -

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which may require management judgment.
RETELGREBFENTEEER  EXESZEEF,E
B RIITHIOR - BIEE P se R RLUL VL 2T

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivables included:

B EREENE SRS G EREHEETHIRREF 2

o Discussing the Group's procedures on credit limits
and credit periods given to customers with the

management;

e HEREEN® EEENEERBEIHRERFKEG
BERPMEES

o Evaluating the management’s impairment

assessment of trade receivables; and

o FMREEENESRYGRBENS &

o Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables.

o TEIREE HEUGIERE R E T PrEE R A
1 N AERAME

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

72 F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Hft 58

EFRAHHEMEREAR - HEEBEF®RN
MFEEE (THEMBEERE]  ENEREAMT
WR R BFINZBRED RS -

ﬁfFﬁéﬁ?éEM‘%ﬁ%E’J%‘\EE\ET\E%E@%
= ﬁ;fFﬁJTT;TEZ%ﬁf‘@%%%ﬁ%fﬂﬂ%ﬁE’\J
EELE

HBEBRMYEEAMBRERNES  RANEE
EREEMESR  FUBRET  EEEMES
EREGAMBHMRKEMEFTBETHAT
ROBRFEEREBENEUFFEEAHR
FRAEIEI - BERIRPIE AT TAE - 1IREK
PIRBEMESFEERBRL - HAFTE
WEZFE - EEHH - VLB EARSE -

ESRERZEEHRS
MEME

EXARERBEBSIMASRMOET B
BHREEM BB RAGINEERT - #iF
HEEMPENGEAMBERE  UHER//E
ﬁé%ﬁ@&i’%ﬂ’]&iﬁTﬁEHﬂBAEWEY%E%F@
BHMBEAFRBAPAFROANBEHNEE -

b e

EREERAMBHREE EFARE B&

BRELENEES  WHEBERE RT?&E@E@H

mre *“ﬁ ONEER  URERRELERS
BRIFEERER ﬁ%@/a%if?t%\%

% BB ERABRTER -



Independent Auditors’ Report
& 3% BA R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEEEkEtEZERER

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2018F3A31 HILFE B & FERT TR
Revenue g 7 164,491 180,616
Cost of sales $HEE R N (139,670) (155,773)
Gross profit EF 24,821 24,843
Other gains or losses HAb e sk /EiE 9 (644) 115
Administrative expenses TEFAY (17,643) (13,227)
Other operating expenses HigERx (2,851) (1,622)
Profit from operations Feg =y 3,683 10,109
Finance costs BhE KA 10 (80) (151)
Profit before taxation BRB AR A 12 3,603 9,958
Income tax expenses Frisiif X 1 (2,362) (2,676)
Profit and total comprehensive KATEEABEEREFNR
income for the year attributable to U E4E
the owners of the Company 1,241 7,282
Earnings per share attributable to KAREEAELRBREF
the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEAREE CGEBWL) 16 0.16 1.21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  iF At Z 454 M MK MBI H o
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MR R

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
At 31 March 2018 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R2018%F3 A31H Bt s FERT FAT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &R 18 12,385 1,073
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 19 341 200
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 20 66,650 44 966
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNFIA 21 2,959 3,026
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAETZH
profit or loss TREE 22 1,105 -
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFR 23 4,000 -
Cash and bank balances RN NIRTTAERS 23 13,179 1,633
88,234 49,825
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables BEEMNREREE 24 3,609 7,557
Accruals, receipts in advance fEETE R - FAEWFIE K
and deposits received B Uit 25 3,040 4,361
Bank overdrafts RITBEY 26 - 1,073
Bank borrowings IRITE 27 = 4,000
Obligations under finance leases RE S AR 28 188 738
Amount due to a shareholder e — B R FRIE 29 = 23
Tax payables FERIFIIR 4,825 3,646
11,662 21,398
Net current assets REEERE 76,572 28,427
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERTBHERS 88,957 29,500
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Obligations under finance leases B FH B EE 28 = 188
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 30 1,183 -
1,183 188
Net assets EEBE 87,774 29,312
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital i@ 31 8,000 -
Reserves s 79.774 29,312
Total equity FERBEE 87,774 29,312

Approved and authorised for the issue by the board of directors on 22

June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements

Fong Chun Man
FHEX

Executive Director

HITEE

ER2018F6 A2 EEE S ENRKET

B URATATRREETSRE

Lo Pui Yee
&

Executive Director

HITEE

MR EER A M RER AR D -

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZBER

Capital
Share Share Other contribution ~ Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
&K
Ra  ROBE HeRE BSEE  REEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET FHET
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) (Note iv)
BZ2018%3A31ALEE (g (e (&) (e
At 1 April 2016 201654 A1H - - - - 22,030 22,030
Effect of reorganization bz - - - - - -
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFI R 2 E £
income for the year - - - - 7,282 7,282
Effect of business transfer ERERy e - - - 24,652 (24,652) -
At 31 March 2017 and R2017E3A31HK
1 April 2017 2017F4R18 - - - 24,652 4,660 29,312
Profit and total comprehensive P FI| [ 2 N #1058
income for the year - - - - 1,241 1,241
Capitalization Issue (Note 31)  EZAMb#{T(MiH7E31) 6,000 (6,000) - - - =
Issue of shares upon Share Offer [ {73 &1 24757
(Note 31) GEXD 2,000 62,000 * - - 64,000
Expenses in connection with BEETRHMES
the issue of shares - (6,779) - - - (6,779)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%53A31H 8,000 49,221 * 24,652 5,901 87,774
Note: B3

(i) On 12 April 2017, 200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were allotted

and issued at a price of HK$0.32 per Share by way of Shares Offer.

(if) Share premium represents the excess of shares issue over the par value.

(iii) Other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the total equity of

the subsidiaries and the aggregated share capital of the subsidiaries pursuant to the
Reorganisation where the transfer of the subsidiaries to the Company are satisfies

by issue of new shares from the Company. The balance was approximately HK$8.

(iv) Capital contribution reserve represents the amount of the financial impact arisen

from the transfer of business from Great Wall (International) Oil Company (Sole

Proprietorship Business) to Great Wall (International) Oil Limited.

The balance was approximately HK$8

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2018F3A31 HILFE FERT TR
Operating activities ReETER
Profit before taxation FR B Bl A 3,603 9,958
Adjustments for: BUTRBEELAE
Finance cost BhE RS 80 151
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - R KRENRE
plant and equipment (511) -
Depreciation of property, W - B REETE
plant and equipment 1,642 1,149
Net loss on financial assets at BEAFEFAEENCREE
fair value through profit or loss B8 FE 1,670 -
Interest income FLE A (279) -
Operating cash flows before EELSRHHZRERERE
movements in working capital 6,205 11,258
Increase in inventories FEEM (141) (140)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 EIFRIEE N (21,684) (18,059)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and e RIEM R IER D, (&)
prepayments 67 (2,236)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables Z 5 e 5B CRid) g hn (1,374) 3,478
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, receipts JEFtER - BRI RERIES
in advance and deposits received CR), /38 (1,321) 2,405
Net fund used in financial assets AREAFEFABEN SR EE
at fair value through profit or loss B2 5E (2,775) -
Cash used in operations LEFRES (21,023) (3,294)
Tax paid [=ANERE = (605)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFAARSFHE (21,023) (3,899)
Investing activities RETER
Acquisition of property, WHEM% - BB R&
plant and equipment (12,954) (33)
Increase of pledged bank deposit EHEMRITFFIG (4,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE . mENEEAERE
plant and equipment 511 -
Interest income LAY A 279 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFARS TR (16,164) (33)
Fetb% (ER)EBARAR / —ZE—N\FER 79



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTMER

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2018F3A31 HILFE FERT TR
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds of issue share upon IR DB E B EITIR DA
share offer, net FTiS s IB 588 57,221 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERPTIS A - 4,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITIER (4,000) (1,229)
Proceeds from bills payable JES =R TS FUE - 2,574
Repayments of bills payable BERNREE (2,574) -
Repayments to a shareholder ¥ —BRHEER (23) (3,170)
Repayments of obligations under BEMEHEAE
finance leases (738) (1,420)
Decreased of bank overdraft HRITIESR D (1,073) -
Interest paid EARFLE (80) (151)
Net cash generated from METBEREFH
financing activities 48,733 604
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRESESEWHEM D)
cash equivalents B 11,546 (3,328)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FORERELSEEY
beginning of the year 1,633 3,888
Cash and cash equivalents FREERELSEEY
at the end of the year 13,179 560
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRASEEY
at the end of the year
Cash and bank balances e NIRITA R 13,179 1,633
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (1,073)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASRAESEEY
at the end of the year 13,179 560

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

80 F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2018

MIFE UL FER A M SRR M AR ED D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on
30 March 2017. The registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Units 3304, 33/F, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Grand Tycoon Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Grand Tycoon
Limited is controlled by Mr. Fong Chun Man (“Mr. Fong”), a
executive Director of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries principally engaged in the business of the sale and
transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its principal subsidiaries and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousands (HK$'000), except when otherwise
stated.

—RER
RARRR2017 3 A30 HRBERRVARE
FeRsaMiv ABHRE2ERAF -
N T H) FE 1 3% = B2 /3 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &2 &
BT EZEEMBRBTBNELERRE
BHREKESZ ALY — 33304 E o A
RAMEERERRIERARALZTER
NAE ZATRREBEZES([REE
ZHEDFMKY - RFBRAFHA
NAEITEEHEXEE([HREDE
i

RRRRBREZERAR - KB RARE
RHEBBNEHE FEXRME R
FAEm °

BRBME  REMBRERARNAF]
LRETEMBRARNNEEEET(E
T2 MAEEEZEEREOT
2 (FET) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

2.

82

REORGANISATION

In connection with the listing of the Shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, the Company underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation as fully explained in the
paragraph headed "Reorganisation” in the section headed
"History and Development, Reorganisation and Group Structure”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 29 March 2017 (the
"Prospectus”), the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group on 22 March 2017. The
companies now comprising the Group were under the common
control of Mr. Fong before and after the Reorganisation.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis by applying the principles of merger
accounting as if the Reorganisation had been completed at the
beginning of the reporting period.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of changes
in equity include the results of the companies now comprising
the Group have been prepared as if the current group structure
upon completion of the Reorganisation had been in existence
throughout the reporting period or since their respective date of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The consolidated
statements of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017
has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the
companies now comprising the Group as if the current group
structure upon completion of the Reorganisation had been in
existence as at those dates, taking into account the respective
dates of incorporation.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of the new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) (which included all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2017. A summary of the new and revised HKFRSs are set
out below:

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative;

Amendment to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised losses; and

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs, 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs and HKAS in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15 and amendments
to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

s w N
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Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendments, Curtailment
or settlement?

Long-term Interest in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9
was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a
fair value through other comprehensive income measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group are
described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 to be subsequently measured at amortised cost to
fair value. Specifically, debt investment that are held within
a business model whose objective is to the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

86

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the Directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

All financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company also anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group. However,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
have material impact to the opening accumulated losses at 1
April 2018.

Except for abovementioned, the Directors anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have other significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities based on an analysis of the Group's
financial instruments as at 31 March 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach

to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. Under
HKFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Based on the current
business of Company, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in the future. There will be
additional disclosures upon the adoption of HKFRS 15.

Based on the current business model, the Directors of the
Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 would result
in significant impact on the amounts reported on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the future. However, there
will be additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures upon
the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
"Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should
recognize depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classify cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
present them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for lease that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

As set out in Note 34 total operating lease commitment of the
Group is respect of its office premises as at 31 March 2018 was
amounting to approximately HK$3,353,000. The directors of the
Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared
with the current accounting policy would result in significant
impact on the Group's results but it is expected that certain
portion of these commitments will be required to be recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Other than that, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group
performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the financial performance.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and related interpretations issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosure requirements by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or business in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect to
goodwill or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over its cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the contribution of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or business first came
under common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of common control combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered as an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of combining entities or business have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees,
costs or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using merger
accounting are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidation financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions needs to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which qualify
as a common control combination and are therefore accounted
for using the merger accounting.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value for
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related
costs are expensed. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any
noncontrolling interest in the acquire at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquire and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquire over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statements

of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policy adopted by the
Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments of the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provide to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocation resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable an represents amounts receivable for
goods provided in the normal course of business and net of sales
discount.

Sale of Goods:

o revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passes, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied,;

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's general
policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are included.

Retirement benefits costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries and an associate were required to contribute a
certain percentage of the payroll of their staff to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
reporting period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the reporting period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account of their residual value, on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the lease terms

Motor vehicles 30%
Office equipment 20%
Oil barge 10%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. These liabilities
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that are
not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
with absorption cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Absorption cost represents
the amount of proportion of direct cost and indirect cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand deposits held at call with banks.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at FVTPL and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the reporting period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

— itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. Breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

° It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default

on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as ether financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including (trade and bills payables, accruals
and other payables, bank overdrafts, bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and amount due to a
shareholder) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it
no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group which the other entity is a member;

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employees are also related to the
Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

4,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the management have made in the
process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
Management reassesses the adequacy of impairment on a
regular basis. Where the actual cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment for
indications of impairment at each reporting period. In
analysing potential impairments identified, the Group uses
projections of future cash flows from the assets based on
management’s assignment of a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

112

(d)

(e)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision
for taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated ta audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amount that
we initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Valuation of inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Management estimate the net realisable value for raw
materials and finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. In addition,
the management perform an inventory review on a product
by product basis at the end of each reporting period and
assess the need for write down of inventories.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

(a)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. E@IT A
Categories of financial instruments (a) «TRTEEHR
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEGFABZED
through profit or loss TRIEE 1,105 -
Loans and receivables ERMERFGIE(BERe X
(including cash and bank balances) RITEERR)
— Trade receivables — E G EWFE 66,650 44,966
— Deposits — s 1,096 572
— Pledged bank deposits — DHEHRITER 4,000 -
— Cash and bank balances — IR MIRTTES 13,179 1,633
86,030 47171
Financial liabilities EA =R
Amortised cost BESHRC AR
— Trade and bills payables — B HRENFIBEREE 3,609 7,557
— Accruals and deposits received — EFEARBUIES 3,040 4,315
— Bank overdrafts —RITIEX — 1,073
— Bank borrowings — RITIEK = 4,000
— Amount due to a shareholder — B — AR IE - 23
— Obligations under finance leases — B EEERE 188 926
6,837 17,894
Feb¥ (IR EBMBRAR / ZT— N\FFR 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

114

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The management monitor and manage the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risks reports which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
(including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, cash and bank balances, amount due
from a shareholder, trade and bills payables, accruals and
deposits received, bank overdrafts, bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. Details of these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets, mainly the interest-bearing bank balances,
bank overdraft, bank borrowings and obligations
under finance lease. The Group monitors the interest
rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the
portfolio of bank saving balances and borrowings
where necessary.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings, bills payables and bank
overdrafts. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50-basis point increase or decrease throughout the
reporting period is used internally for assessment of
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$Nil for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$38,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, bills payables and bank
overdrafts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities. The
Directors of the Company manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price risk
is mainly concentrated in equity securities listed in
Malaysia industry sector quoted in ACE Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the year ended
31 March 2018. The Directors of the Company will
monitor the risks and consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices had been 15% higher/lower, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$166,000 (2017: HK$NIl) as a result of change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables and amount
due from a shareholder. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. In
respect of liquid funds, the credit risk is considered to
be low as the counterparties are reputable banks with
high credit-ratings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

116

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group's revenue is received from a
number of large customers in relation to sale and
transportation of diesel oil. As at 31 March 2018, the
top five trade receivables accounted for
approximately 59% (2017: 62%) and the largest trade
receivables accounted for approximately 15% (2017:
19%) of the Group's total trade receivables balance
respectively. The Group has set up long-term
cooperative relationship with these debtors. In view of
the history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group'’s
outstanding receivables balance due from these
debtors. Management makes periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade and other receivables
based on historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
The management consider the Group's credit risk of
these receivables to be low.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a
substantial portion of its financial assets and financial
liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its
operations from existing shareholders’ funds and
internally generated cash flows.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and
cash deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of
fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
current and expected liquidity requirements on a
regular basis.

The following tables detail the Group's contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(iii)

6. E@I A

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BBEBREEEEREEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) RBELER(E)
The tables below analyse the Group’s financial TR A AR B B4R B
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on REBNcRBEDHEE
the remaining period at the end of reporting period EHROM - 8B EERTR
to the contractual maturity date. Specifically, bank EHREANEHANE %
borrowings with repayable on demand clause are HE- LHEHE AEZXKE
included in “on demand or within one year” BIGKRRITIERAA[EER
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to KR —FR] - TimiRTTiE
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non- BITHEEENB ML &
derivative financial liabilities are prepared based on HETTE SR EBENEIEA
the agreed repayment dates. The amounts disclosed TR ERN B AMRE -
in the table are based on the contractual TERIBEESBIIERAY
undiscounted payments, are as follows: FREEIRAAF - #F T -
More than ~ More than
Weighted ~ On demand  one year but two years but Total
average or within less than lessthan ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  two years five years five years cash flow amount
EERS BR-F BAMF FERRE
MEFIRIE W-FR  BIREE BIREEF BBEF REAR REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
% TEL ThT TEL TAL TAT TAL
As at 31 March 2018 M2018F3A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ $£744REE
Trade payables BHEMNTE - 3,609 = = = 3,609 3,609
Accruals and deposits received EBRAREWES = 3,040 - - - 3,040 3,040
Obligations under finance leases RERERE 3.83 190 - - - 190 188
6,839 - - - 6,839 6,837
As at 31 March 2017 ®2017%3A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3 {744 REE
Trade and bills payables ZIRMATEREE - 7,557 - - - 7,557 7557
Accruals and deposits received EERREMES - 4315 - - - 4315 4315
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.25 1073 - - - 1073 1073
Bank borrowings RITEER 524 4,008 - - - 4,028 4,000
Amount due to shareholder ER—2RRFE - 2 - - - 2 23
Obligations under finance leases BAMERE 383 761 190 - - 951 926
17,757 190 - - 17,947 17,894
Fetb% (ER)EBARAR / —ZE—N\FER 117
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

118

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowings with repayable on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors of the Company do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
immediate repayment. The Directors of the Company
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

6. E@I A

(b)

MHREREERRERBEE)

(iii)y HREBESER(E)
TR B R B KB E K
RSRITIE FURE IR E P&
BEERERRZISHAS
e 2BBRIEFRAHRE
STEMA BN K e LRI R A
EEMMBERR  AREE
EV AR ABRITEAIRERTT
FHERMBEEROBE
o RQAREEZHE B
RITEFERIBEE R B R
HERERERBPEMmMEE -

Maturity Analysis-bank borrowings
subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
FMBA DN — RERKER
AREREBHRRHOBRITER

More than More than

one year but two years but

Within less than less than
one year two years five years

BB BBWEF

—FR ELRWE BLREF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H - = =
At 31 March 2017 20173831 H 4,028 - -
Fair value estimation () DFEMGE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

(i)  The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in
active markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively;
and

(i)  The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models (e.g. discounted cash flow
analysis using observable and/or unobservable
inputs).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining

(c)

and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value of the Group's financial assets are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis.

Fair value as at

6. EMI A
(c) DFEM @)
AN TS A TSR 41T R
ESRTAATME:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BB R FETIAMERE E
kaBEraRmS 2z ®ECR

RAR)FTE

BRI 2 R FETIARRI 1 FTE
B2 MBI Z B ABURE
E ARBABEBREEN
BEARBERTEZ(AE
B EEER(REER)F
o &

A R3S AE Th VA B Bl
AFE EBRAFFUAEE
MEREAREZEEXA
BRARE(THBEEAR
’®) e

AEESBEED A TEMEEE
PEEUATE B -

RUT BN AFE
Valuation Significant
Fair value Techniques  unobservable
Financial assets 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 hierarchy  and key inputs inputs
HEFER  FETTERE
201834318 2017%3A31H NYESESR  EIEWARH A DN ;¢ ]
HK$'000 HK$'000
55 FA7
Financial assets at FVTPL: 1,105 - Level 1 Quoted bid N/A
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia F—H prices in an NEm
BATEFABRNESRERE - active market
— BB RAE L HHRAES iNER i
ZEMNE
Except as disclosed as above, the Directors consider the B D TREEE SN - EFERRKRE

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial

statements approximates to their fair values.

AR A M RRARNDE
BEMEHMABBERAEEAATE

EE -

Fei sk (IR £EAR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities will

(d)

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged during the reporting period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and injection of capital.

6. E@I A

EXEpmER

AEEEREEER  NHERERER
FgReE RS ERE(CERRE
SAEBRREREREALR - K5
BOEERENREPHESTT

HIER B M BERRAWE - AEH
HERNRBEBREAERRANRAE
BARIEED  ERBREEA - f#
B R ARB A

ARREEEHEMEARRRE - K
KEEERENRAREZERE
AERH AR - WFEBRMNRE R
FEFEEBELRGRE -

The following is the gearing ratio at the end of each WTAEREHARNEEARGLL
reporting period: =
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FABT
Total borrowings (Note (i) AE (D) 188 8,573
Total equity (Note (ii)) st (D)) 87,774 29,312
Gearing ratio BEAMFLE 0.2% 29.2%
Notes: 3T -
0] Total borrowings represent bills payables, bank overdrafts, bank (i) 4815 RS I 5524 ~ 26 ~ 27 2 28 FT &

borrowings and obligations under finance leases as set out in Notes
24,26, 27 and 28; and

(if) Total equity includes share capital and reserves at the end of each
reporting period.
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7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the reporting period is as

Wz
WasRE E B RN ERFEIREE R
BRRSHH) -

AEERREHAROWESFTOT

follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Diesel oil L5 159,722 165,720
Marine diesel oil M A 585 3,288 13,618
Lubricant oil B 1,481 1,278
164,491 180,616

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

A single management team reports to the Directors (being the
chief operating decision-maker) who comprehensively manage
the entire business. Accordingly, the Group does not present
segment information separately.

Geographical information

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group
operated in Hong Kong and all of the Group's revenue are
derived from Hong Kong and all of non-current assets of the
Group are located in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.
No analysis of the Group's result and assets by geographical area
is disclosed.

Information about major customers
Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group during the reporting period are as follows:

7 EPE R
E—EREENMEEEEEEEHN
EE(NEBLEARE)ER - Btk -
R B2 IBT AR -

ih 3 E B

HE2018F R2017E3A31HILFEE -
AEEREBLE  R20184F K& 2017 F
3A318 AEEMBWREHREES -
BEXREEMBEERDEEMNES - I
EREANEEIRMIERINEDNEENL
BEDW -

BFETEEFNESR
R¥FEHRE - FRERMEASEE KRS
838 10% my iz an T

2018 2017

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Customer A ZEA —* 25,091

Customer B =F5B —* 20,318

Customer C Z2HEC 17,829 —*
* The customers contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group. * BEPWA T RME AR EE M5 D5 10% °
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9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 9. HitWzmmEsig
2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
HK$/000 HK$/000
FET FAT
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BB LB S
plant and equipment 511 -
Realised loss on financial assets BAFEFABRN
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEMNERER (212) -
Unrealised loss on financial assets LR ER ABZS
at fair value through profit or loss TRMAEENRERER (1,458) -
Bank interest income (Note i) HRITHEHA (B EETD) 279 -
Sundry income FEBA 236 115
(644) 115
Note: (i) Bank interest income mainly represents interest generated from the MEE () RITFSWA F Z BT ARITORMD
share offer fund deposited in bank. BITEASEENFEL -
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLE KA
2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on bank borrowings AREFAZHIEE
wholly repayable within five years RITIE A EFX 53 81
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts RITEZMF B 5 14
Interest expenses on obligations MEHERENT SR
under finance leases 22 56
80 151
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statements of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income represent:

11. FIBHHAX

(a)

reEnkEMEEKERAMS
Bits -

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 £F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Current tax B EA 18
Hong Kong Profit Tax EENER 1,179 2,676
Deferred tax (Note 30) FEIERIA (FI5E30) 1,183 -
2,362 2,676

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% to the estimated assessable profit for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands.

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

The income tax for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

BEBFNERIBEEZ2018F &
2017 F 3 A 31 B I FE 2 haHfERR
TR FIATE R 16.5% VEH B4 -

RIEASHERRBRLEENR
QISR - AEE B AR TR
SHENRRBERESHFAEHR

BEBENS IR EHER
SR IR 4

RE Z=20184F & 2017F3 A31H
(TR SR A B R
2 U 25 2% P 51 B B4 AT U AR
o

2018 2017
20184 2017 £
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation BRE RIS F 3,603 9,958
National tax on profit before taxation, ZEANEBEE R G 2 =K
calculated at the rate applicable STEBRMANEFBIREIA
to profits in the entities concerned 594 1,643
Tax effect of incomes not taxable HERMRBWANTRETE
for tax purpose (98) (181)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7N A 30754 5 st B9 7 75 52 28
for tax purpose 1,896 1,502
Tax effect of unused tax losses utilised E)FA KRB AR EEBHOHRETE - (268)
Tax reduction R (30) (20)
Income tax charge for the year FEXNREREY 2,362 2,676
Feb¥ (IR EBMBRAR / ZT— N\FFR 123
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12.

124

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRBLADER
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived FEERMNSHR(FTA)
at after charging/(crediting): TH&HE:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) EEHM(HFE13) 2,273 1,059
Other staff costs: Hth B TAHA :
— Salaries and other benefits — Hre REMEN 3,903 3,386
— Bonuses — JE4T - 205
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREAIGTEI R
contributions 180 170
4,083 3,761
2018 2017
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration (Note i) TZ RN E B (BT D) 600 600
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses #ER /&M S WFER A 135,584 152,228
Depreciation of property, ME - BERBBITE
plant and equipment (Note 18) (fF5E18)
— Cost of sales — HERK A 1,337 1,024
— Administrative expenses — THAX 305 125
1,642 1,149
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEMRENRZE
plant and equipment (511) -
Operating lease rental expenses R ARNKEEHER SR
in respect of office premises 1,887 1,300
Listing expenses (Note ii) ks (fEEiD) 6,972 7,148
Note: Bt EE -
(i) Exclude services for the listing of the Group. (i) TEIEAREE ETAEBRS
(ii) The listing expenses are included in “Administrative expenses”. (ii) RS EATTERESL ] -
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13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEEHM
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE20185F3A31HLFE
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions Total
FER EikE
EZHE Hin &7 AL TR Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TERT TART TERT FTAERT
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Fong Chun Man (Note (i) FESEAE (BREE () - 589 - 18 607
Ms. Lo Pui Yee (Note (ii) B g2t (B i) - 589 - 18 607
Mr. Chan Chi Fai (Note (iii)) B HB AE AE (BI R (i) = 693 = 18 711
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Note (iv)) & &= %4 (Fif3E (iv) 116 - - - 116
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap (Note (iv)) BB 5 A (HIRE (v) 116 - - - 116
Mr. Wang Anyuan (Note (iv)) TRk () 116 - - - 116
348 1,871 - 54 2,273
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ201753A31MBLEE
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions Total
ek RRE
Yok HA g TE4T FHEI R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET TAx TEx THT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Fong Chun Man (Note (i) FESUEE (BHFEG) 200 - - 10 210
Ms. Lo Pui Yee (Note (ii) St (P ﬁuf 200 - - 10 210
Mr. Chan Chi Fai (Note (iii)) RS S A (P S (i - 528 93 18 639
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Note (iv)) &= 54 (M5 (iv) - - - - -
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap (Note (iv)) BB A (B i - - - - -
Mr. Wang Anyuan (Note (iv)) Tt (e - - - - _
400 528 93 39 1,059
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13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their
service in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received and receivable from the Group by these Directors in
their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their capacity
as Directors of the Company during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017. No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Notes:

(i) Mr. Fong Chun Man was appointed as executive Director on 30 March 2016
and chairman of the Board on 22 August 2016.

(ii) Ms. Lo Pui Yee, spouse of Mr. Fong, was appointed as executive Director
and vice-chairman of the Board on 22 August 2016.

(iii) Mr. Chan Chi Fai was appointed as executive Director on 22 August 2016
and the Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2016. During reporting period, he
was the senior management of Great Wall (International) Oil Company since
20 September 2010.

(iv) Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap and Mr. Wang Anyuan
appointed as independent non-executive Directors of the Company on 23
March 2017.

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included three and one of
executive Directors of the Company for the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017 respectively, details of whose emoluments
are set out above in Note 13. The emoluments of the remaining
individuals for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are two
and four respectively and individuals disclosed are as follows:

13. EEFHFMN &)
FRMTEEGM T BEARSRER
AR RAEEERBEMBE -

EXF RS EZEEETNHEHE2018F
K207 F3ANBIEFEEALEBR R
BEN N/ STHEARNRREZTGHEW
EWAEENS MEESFENEE
2018 F K 2017 63 A 31 H It FEMES
Ek=9EEREEA

BT -

(i) FEXFEAER2016F3 A0 BEZEAHIT
EBEWR2016F8ANBEZTAESS
EE o

(i) BELL  BREEZERE 1201658
ARBEZEARITESRESSRERE -

(i)  REEEALEN2016FS A2 AELZTAHNIT
BEIN2016F4 A1 BEZTAITHRES -
RIREHAR - B 2010569 A20 B R E (T
BEE (BB BHRARZEMEIEAS -

vy EECEE BBIEERTLRTEER
2017 F3 A 23 HEZ T AA R RIBILIEATT
EEo

14. EEFMR SREE A S FHH
HZE2018FE K2017FE3A3NBILFE -
hEREFMATIIBREART =%
k—HHTEE  EEFMFIBEEHN L
XBHFEE 13 B E 2018 4F 2 20174 3 A 31
BEFE B TATEFMOAA=ZZR
N s ERIALHEMNT -

2018 2017

2018 F 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 856 1,186
Bonuses TEAT = 146
Retirement benefit schemes contribution R k&5t 2T 33 58
889 1,390
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14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

14.

BEEFMESREEAETHMH
(4)
HFHBRATREANNESREH
BREAZMT -

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 2 4

The number of the senior management (excluding directors)

HEFEHENUATHEANSRERAS

whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: (TEHES) ABWT :
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ANEL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,0007%8 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

15. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

15.

BN ZE 20184 22017463 A31H IEETE -
AEBEBESMERNGFMHFEZ AR
hEmE=HES  ERMAARIMAR
EEENEEXEABMBEE - BEE
EREE2018F K2017FE3A3NBIEFE
[EIREE Sk R B R E A H B -

e
HE2018F3A31HILFE » AR AE
FW A EFIRMASEARE(20177F « T
BIT)
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

16. BRER

128

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

AEAREEEANEBIEERERALES
BNE - ERIATEUE |

2018 2017
20184 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to owners RARIER NEG R
of the Company 1,241 7,282
Number of shares BRMHEE ‘000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary STESRERET®
shares for the purpose of calculation LimAR ke &
basic earning per share 793,973 600,000

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 March 2018 is based on the assumption that
600,000,000 shares of the Company were comprising 100 shares
in issue, 599,999,900 shares issued pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation and Capitalisation Issue in Note 31, as if these
shares were outstanding throughout the period from 1 April 2017
to 12 April 2017 (the “Listing Date"”), and 200,000,000 shares
issued under the Share Offer.

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 March 2017 is based on the assumption that
600,000,000 shares of the Company were in issue, comprising 100
shares in issue 599,999,900 shares issued pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation. Capitalisation Issue in Note 31, and as if these
shares were outstanding throughout that year.

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary share in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018.
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PR 599,999,900 P& A% {7 & B 5% 31 Fit
HEEBEAREREITMET BN
ZERMDN2017F4H1H 22017 F4
RB128 ([ L AH)) HAR9 817N
55200,000,0008% B D IR R AR 19 B 5 351 T o

EEHZ2017F383MHIEFER BT
AR INREF 8 - FTKIBRZRATA
A) & 377 600,000,000 & f& 15 » sZ S 1D
FR 100 3% 2 2 17 A% 19 A8 BX + 599,999,900
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BEREE 2017 E N 201843 A 31 HIE4F
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17. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 17. TEHNB A F
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting REER - AR FIMHE A F B
period are as follows: T~

Percentage of
Paidup  equity interest and

Place and Principle capital or voting power
Date of country of registered  attributable to the
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation capital company Principle activities
E 30 1AV TEEHR ERER AARFAERS
WEARER WERAH FEER EfER RREEEDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %
Ruigin Investments Limited  The BVI, Hong Kong US$10.00 100 - Investment holding
5 January 2016
BBREBRAA RERES BE 10.00% 7T 100 - RERK
201651 A5H
Great Wall (International) ~ Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$1.00 - 100 Sale and transportation of
Oil Limited 22 December 2005 diesel oil and related
products
(BB ABRAR BB BE 1.00/7T - 100 Sm R ARRAE R
2005F 128228 HERESH

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19.

130

18. % - MEKKRHE

Leasehold Motor Office
improvement Oil barge vehicles equipment Total
HEMELE Sh BN RE WARE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR THT T TR THL
Cost: B
At 1 April 2016 R2016F471H 239 - 10,127 - 10,366
Additions NE - - 33 33
At 31 March 2017 and R21T7EIRNER
1 April 2017 2017F47818 239 - 10,127 33 10,399
Additions NE 662 8,500 3,792 - 12,954
Disposals HE (239) - (2,488) - (2,727)
At 31 March 2018 R2018E3A31H 662 8,500 11,431 33 20,626
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 April 2016 R2016E4A 1R 100 - 8,077 - 8,177
Charge for the year FEYTH 119 - 1,024 6 1,149
At 31 March 2017 and R217FIBINER
1 April 2017 01754A18 219 - 9,101 9,326
Charge for the year FEXH 151 283 1,202 1,642
Disposals HE (239) - (2,488) - 2.727)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%E3H31H 131 283 7,815 12 8,241
Carrying amount; FEE:
At 31 March 2018 20183 A31H 531 8,217 3616 21 12,385
At 31 March 2017 RH2017%F3A831H 20 - 1,026 27 1,073
Assets pledged as security EBIERNEE

As at 31 March 2018, the motor vehicles with carrying amount of
approximately HK$228,000 (2017: HK$913,000) have been
pledged to secure finance leases (Note 28) granted to the Group

M2018FE3A31 0 EEMEEEEH R
#7228,0003 7T, (2017 £F : 913,000 7T )
HA8E UBERERTFAEENRERE

respectively. (fF5E28) °
INVENTORIES 19. B8
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Finished goods — Diesel oil BIRK o — SoH 341 200
Inventories represent the merchandise of diesel products at the FEHENREHRNSORTG S ©

end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. EZ EWKIE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 66,650 44,966
(a) Ageing analysis (a) HRERZDHT
The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age, UTAERBREHRREREAHES
presented based on the invoice date and net of allowance WE 5 EWRFIE (kR REEEE) IR
for doubtful debts, at the end of the reporting periods: BT -
2018 2017
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 16,942 12,954
31 to 60 days 31260H 8,300 11,101
61 to 90 days 61E90H 12,266 9,428
91 to 120 days 91&E120H 7,086 6,389
Over 120 days 1208 & 22,056 5,094
66,650 44,966
The Group's average credit term with its customers is, in AEFBHREZFHFELHEER R
general, 3 days to 120 days. The Group seeks to maintain B3EBE1208 - REEB O H W
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue Sk Uk 8] B FE L S T8 M 1 B AR A o
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. BHEHEmeNEIEEERER -
Details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 5(a). AREBEZEHRFBENAMFES)
(b) Impaired trade receivables (b) BWEEZEWRIE

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision
required in excess of the impairment of trade receivables
during the reporting period.

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR

REE E 5 B YR IR # A] Yg Bl 14
B AEEZEEZRKFIESR
EMnpREEMEERERREE
BEMEMES - it - EFMAE
BANREHREGRBLE S EK
RIBREZE— T EERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

132

(b)

(c)

Impaired trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's policy for impairment loss on trade receivables
is based on an evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the receivables which requires the use of
judgment and estimates. Provisions are applied to the
receivables when there are events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The management closely reviews the trade
receivables balances and any overdue balances on an
ongoing basis and assessments are made by the
management on the collectability of outstanding balances.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

20. ESEWFRIE ()

(b)

(c)

WA E 5 R IE (8)
REBEHE ZRUWIBR ERBER
BUR THE R R4 W R IR B T g ]
MR IR AT - BRAZER A
Kfbat - BRESHIRBELE
B - BURERIKAIBE BRI DB - B
HEMFRELEE - EEERE
T EHE 5 RUGIR SRR R
B ER  JETUR O B H A R0 R
REMEVE AT AL -

B R ORE B 5 B WROR R iR
Py
WARERI K BB IKRSRERE S
JEMGRIBRE DA T

2018 2017

2018 2017 £

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 30 days 30HA 5,686 8,642
31 to 60 days 312 60H 8,191 4,406
61 to 90 days 612 90H 3,792 2,004
91 to 120 days 912 120H 2,880 12
Over 120 days 1208 £ 8,586 5
29,135 15,069

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers and debtors for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

21.

22.

23.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21. BeRENFRE
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deposits b 1,096 572
Earnest money and deposit paid HRUEBEENHER
for acquisition RiR® 1,248 -
Prepayments TE IR 615 2,454
2,959 3,026
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. BAFEFABRNEREE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Listed securities EmES
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia — R D ETRAES 1,105 -

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value which are determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

BAVEAEENESHEERATE
SRR WRRBEMSMERETE

23. Et'ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%k/iﬁﬁmﬁﬁ

=} N

2018 2017

20184 2017 £

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Pledged bank deposits EHEPRITIF N 4,000 -
Cash and bank balances He RIBITES 13,179 1,633
17,179 1,633

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at bank and cash on hand
held by the Group. Bank balances earn interests at floating rate
based on daily bank deposit rates and is placed with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The pledged bank deposits were pledged as collateral for bank
facilities and carried interest at 0.31% per annum.

R MRTERERETERRAEE
FAENTFHRRE - |RITHERLEART
TR EAF BN RREF S - FRE
HAYP 22 400 ER B B RAFRVIRTT o

ERMIRITFREERSRITRERIE
i WAFFIZO0.31%5T 8
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24. EZENRERERE

2018 2017

2018 2017 F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trade payables B S ENFIE 3,609 4,983
Bills payable ANESS7 = 2,574
3,609 7,557

The average credit term from suppliers is up to 3 to 60 days. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

HEEGLTHFEEENRIEOR -
RTRARBEHRREZEHEINNE
PN FIARZBRE DT -

period:

2018 2017
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 30 days 30HA 2,808 3,386
31 to 60 days 312 60H 801 4,044
671 to 90 days 61290H - 54
91 to 120 days 912 120H = 1
Over 120 days 120 B A £ - 72
3,609 7,557

Note: BiRE -

The bills payable are secured by:

(a) unlimited personal guarantee provided by an executive Director of the
Company Mr. Fong; and

(b) pledge of the property which owned by an executive Director of the
Company Mr. Fong.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

25.

26.

ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND
DEPOSITS RECEIVED

25. EéEE‘I‘ﬁFH C RIBRRIAE K B R

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Accruals JEETEH 2,860 4,235
Receipts in advance SEUNE O _ 46
Deposits received B iz e 180 80
3,040 4,361

BANK OVERDRAFTS 26. $BITEX

Bank overdrafts of the Group carry interest at market rate of
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate and Hong Kong best lending rate
as at 31 March 2017.

(@) unlimited personal guarantee provided by an executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Fong; and

(b) pledged of the property which owned by an executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Fong.

MN201763 8318 REBRIRITAX
DRI ERERNERBEERERE
RHEMIZE LS -

(@ ARBRTESFHAERENER
BARER: &

b) ARBATESHEERANYE
A
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27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITHEX
2018 2017
20184 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Secured bank borrowings (Notes (i) and (i) B R1TE K (B FE () X (i) - 4,000
Secured term loan from bank that repayable within the period of: BRUTHFRAEENEGIRFRTERH
B
2018 2017
20184 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
less than one year —&FR - 4,000
more than 1 year but within 2 years BB —FELRRE = -
more than 2 years but within 5 years HBAMFEELRAF = -
- 4,000
Less: Amount classified as current liabilities J& : D fEATEBEE—FENR
Secured Term loan due within B HA sy E A 78 R Bk g
one year or contain a repayment ERERNEER
On demand clause TEHER = (4,000)
Amounts classified as non-current liabilities 38 AIER BB EHI K - -
Notes: BT
(i) The bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2017 was secured by (i) AEERK 2017 F3 A31 BMRITERBHAR
personal guarantee of an executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fong and BITEEH R ENEAABRRERTHNT
a property owned by the executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fong. EFTEERANMEERR -
(i) The bank borrowings of the Group with financial institutions amounted to (ii) FEEMSREBNRITERSED
approximately HK$4,000,000, carried at floating interest rate ranging from 4,000,000 7T ° HE2017F3A31BIEFE -
4.75% to 6.00% per annum for the years ended 31 March 2017 respectively. SFENFIE S RIS T 4.75% = 6.00%
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

28. MEHEEER

The Group lease certain of its property, plant and equipment REBRERERAOASEEE TWE -
under finance leases. W= SR o
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Minimum lease payments under MEHENRKERERE
finance leases
— Within one year ——FR 190 761
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —EB_EZERE (BEEEMS) = 190
190 951
Less: Future finance charges B BIERMEER (2) (25)
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 188 926
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Present value of minimum lease payments &K EFIERE
— Within one year ——FR 188 738
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —F_ZELF (BREERERF) = 188
188 926
Less: Amounts due for settlement W —F AR BB ER
within one year 188 (738)
Amounts due for settlement after one year — 14 2| Hi/5 (B H) Z8 - 188

The Group has leased the motor vehicles under finance leases
and the lease term are in the range from 2 to 3 years. During the
years ended 31 March 2018, the annual effective interest rates of
the obligations under finance leases was 3.83% (2017: 3.83%) per
annum respectively. The obligations under finance leases are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and its carrying amount
approximate its fair value. The Group's obligations under finance
leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets and
personal guarantee by an executive Director of the Company,
Mr. Fong.

As at 31 March 2018, the finance leases payables of the Group
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$188,000 (2017:
HK$926,000) were secured by the lessor’ charge over the leased
assets with carrying amount of approximately HK$228,000 (2017:
HK$913,000) for year ended 31 March 2018 (Note 18).

AEBEREREHEREE HE
B F2523F - NE £2018F 3 A 31
HIEFE BEAEETEAEREF
= 5 Bl £3.83% (2017 £ : 3.83%) » &t
BHREAELNEITAE - EREEEE
ANFERE  AEERERERETINU
PHEARBEEENMEERANRTH
TESZH RENEARRERT -

R2018F3A3MH AEBEKMEY
188,000 7T (2017 4F : 926,000/ 7T ) HJ
EVEHE RN FIER LA ANEZE 2018
F3A31ALFEREED B4 228,000
7 7T (2017 4F 913,000/ T) I E &
EZERAER M) -
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29. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 29. BT —EBRRNIE
The amount due to a shareholder, Mr. Fong, is non-trade in JE— BB ERALEEREAIEE SN
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayment on demand. g EmEE - B MIREREE -

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EEHBRE
The followings are the major deferred tax balances recognised AN AREZE2018F & 2017 F3 A31H
and movements thereon during the years ended 31 March 2018 EFERRNTEEENEER L EE
and 2017: 8 :

31.

138

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
B IE T
HK$'000
FABT
As at 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and MZZE—XREMNA—H
1 April 2017 B2+ F=A=1+—AK
—ZE—+tFWHA—H -
Recognised in consolidated statement of  F ARG B K E A
profit or loss and other comprehensive 2HEMERERFIEE11)
income during the year (Note 11) 1,183
At 31 March 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F=A=+—H 1,183
SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
Number of
Share HK$'000
R#HEE THT
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon PR 1% &A% 0.01 3 T T @A
incorporation (Note (a)) (3£ (a)) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital A TE R ANE 0 (P E (o)
(Note (0)) 1,962,000,000 19,620
As at 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and R 2017%3H31H -
31 March 2018 2017F4R18HR
201843 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,000

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

31. BA& (&)

Number of
Share HK$'000
ROEE FHET
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon KA1 B AR 0.01 B IR & B
incorporation (Note (a), (b)) (H3E @) ~ (b)) 1 -

Issue of shares upon reorganisation BHABRMNETT (D)

(Note (b)) 99 _

As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 MR2017F3 A3 B K&

2017F4R1H 100 -
Issue of new shares under the Share Offer RBIENDEEEZETTH D
(Note (d)) (F3E(d)) 200,000,000 2,000

Capitalisation Issue (Note (d)) BARIEETT (BTsE (d)) 599,999,900 6,000

As at 31 March 2018 A2018F3H31H 800,000,000 8,000

Notes: B E

(a) The Company was incorporated on 30 March 2016 with authorised share (a) ARARIR2016F 3 430 HFEMAL » JAE MK
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each and 7K /5 380,0007% JT 7 /4 38,000,000 A% & % 0.01
has not carried on any business since the date of incorporation except for BITHARD - BEANS - RAT XM
the Reorganisation. On the date of incorporation, one nil-paid share was PRI 2 B AR MR E I o PR
allotted and issued. K2 B+ —IRARBARRAR D BB BT o

(b) On 22 March 2017, Mr. Fong Chun Man (as warrantor), Grand Tycoon Limited (b) M2017F3A22H » AEXTE(EAER
(as vendor) and the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement, AN REBRARIERER) RARFAEG
pursuant to which Grand Tycoon Limited (the “Grand Tycoon") transferred N—HEERE B ZFARAR(R
its entire shareholding interest in Ruigin Investments Limited to the FHEZERYREBR AR ZHBE TR
Company, in consideration of (i) the crediting as fully paid of the initial share RNA] LA 3 B IR B B A M VA IR (D A
held by Ruigin Investments, and (ii) issuance of 99 shares credited as fully BR BV AR 1 I (i) SE B AR 42 [ R sk Ba g
paid to Grand Tycoon for the Reorganisation as set out in the section B EHEREEREINEAH] —HM#Hz
headed “Reorganisation” in the “History and Development, Reorganisation BHEREERRTETRBKRMN ARIIER
and Group Structure” to the Prospectus. RARE -

() Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholder passed on 23 March () RIBMERR 20177 F3 A 23 HBB 2 EEAH
2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from = KA A #3858 1,962,000,000 % & 4% 0.01
HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by creation of an additional of 1,962,000,000 BT Z B - #EAN R B1AE B AN B 380,00078
shares of HK$0.01 each, each ranking pari passu with the shares then in issue 7T AN Z 20,000,000 % 7T+ & AR AR 17 BL & B
in all respects. BRETROEMBEFEZARSER

(d) On 11 April 2017, 200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were (d) R2017F4 8118 ARREBRMDEER

allotted and issued at a price of HK$0.32 per share by way of Share Offer.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholder passed on 23 March
2017, subject to the share premium account of the Company being credited
as a result of the Share Offer, the Directors were authorised to allot and issue
a total of 599,999,900 shares credited as fully paid at par to Grand Tycoon
Limited by way of capitalization of the sum of HK$5,999,999 standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company (“Capitalisation Issue”).
The Capitalisation Issue was completed on 12 April 2017. The shares allotted
and issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares.

fe B 00.3278 T 2 (B 18 B % R 3 17
200,000,000 A& &A% 7 0.01 7 7T 2 & 19 °

RIERER 2017 F3 A 23 B BB EE A
R AR BRI G ERERD B E Mk
EIEMNBRRT  EFEEREBAQRRMD G
ERMERS 85,999,999 B T(LIEE AR » £
NIEEERARTERARRERETAH
599,999,900 % A BRZIVERE IR R B AR D ([ &
TAEEEAT]) c ERCEITER2017F4 712
B - MECE RBETHRG - SRERIE
BEBTROESHEHEZEREFMA

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z 20183 A31 HILFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

32. AR AP BMRRE

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FAT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiary R—EMB AR ZIRE 17 - -~
Current asset REBEE
Prepayments TEfTRRIE 1,863 2,366
Financial assets at fair value A EAARBEY
through profit or loss SREE 22 1,105 -
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTE% 1,531 -
Amount due from a subsidiary JEU — M B R R FUE 35,589 -
40,088 2,366
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals fEEtE R 2,104 3,499
Amount due to a subsidiary JE —REIBT B A B F A - 6,663
Amount due to a shareholder e —Z R R FIE - 43
2,104 10,205
Net current liabilities TEEeETEE 37,984 (7,839)
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital A% AR 31 8,000 -
Reserves s 33 29,984 (7,839)
Total equity HRER 37,984 (7,839)

Approved and authorised for issued by the board of Directors on
22 June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

ER2018F6 AN AR EEE I E LK
RETIED > WA TIEERREE

Fong Chun Man Lo Pui Yee
FEX s
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEFE HITEE
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33. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 33. X EIFEE
Share (Accumulated
premium losses) Total
B E (RFTER) @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET
As at T April 2016 R2016%4A1H - on ©n
Profit and total comprehensive loss  ERR FI| & 2 E B 1B 48 58
for the period - (7,748) (7,748)
As at 31 March 2017 and R2017F3A318B K
1 April 2017 2017F4R18 - (7,839) (7,839)
Profit and total comprehensive loss A& K| & 2 [ E5 18 42 58
for the year - (11,398) (11,398)
Capitalization Issue (Note 31) B BT (M5 31) (6,000) - (6,000)
Issue of shares upon Share Offer PR DB E R BTG
(Note 31) (F3E31) 62,000 - 62,000
Expenses in connection with the BREETRHOAE
issue of shares 6,779 - 6,779)
As at 31 March 2018 M2018%F3A31H 49,221 (19,237) 29,984
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REHERIE
The Group as lessee AEBEERABEA
At the end of each reporting date, the Group had commitments REWE B R - NEBER AT HEEEL
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EHEZ ARREEEENRER TIF
operating leases which fall due as follows: HASZ A -
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
— within one year ——FR 1,546 246
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —FEE2FERF(BIEEERT) 1,807 295
3,353 541
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHENRRAEERSE TR ZIE
Group for certain of office premises. Leases are negotiated at e HEUNT—E=FmHHEE®E
terms which range from 1 to 3 years. The Group does not have an THER - AEBEWENHEREmER
option to purchase the leased premises at the expiry of the lease EMHEMEEEE -
period.
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35.

36.

37.

142

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group have
no capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(2017: HK$1,500) and they can choose to make additional
contributions. Employers; monthly contributions are calculated at
5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (2017: HK$1,500) (the “mandatory contributions”).
Employees are entitled to 100% of the employer's mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total incapacity.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represent contributions
paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group
are disclosed in Note 12.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the share option schemes of the Company are set
out in the section headed "“Share Option Scheme” in the Report
of the Board of Directors of this report.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 March 2017
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became
effective on the date of the Company’s listing (12 April 2018) and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
ten years from that date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of our Group and to
promote the success of the business of our Group.
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35.

36.

37.

BAEIE

REE20185F &2017F3A31HILEFE -
AEBEVERWBDE  BELEED
FIOERBENELRRY

EW@Eﬂﬁ%

AEBMBERH M QNTE ST ENEHIR L
—Iﬁﬁmfﬁmmﬁlﬂi %f%ﬁ;ﬁwmﬂ
E((REerTE )  RERBESF
g EEBEEFEE AFHEKS% &5
1t 3% %8 A1,5007% 7T (2017 4 + 1,500%8
T0) - REIN AR IEEHEIMESK o BE
2 REFRIREREE A% 5% E
a5 A1,500/8 7T (2017 £ + 1,500
PE7C) ([S& B R]) - [EBTE65 BRI -
BT E AT IEE N A2 8E
BB RBEETR 258 $IK -

RiraBEmMEM2E KRR R

B EEENRREREHIER
%I&ﬁgﬂiﬁﬁﬂaTEHE’JttZEIﬁ%ﬁEH
SKIETHY R o

AREBE DA MR &) A H R BN
HI12 ©

BREsE
AR TR BB B RN RS
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
including, where required under the GEM Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of our Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of share issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding options)
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant or further grant of share options in
excess of this limit must be separately approved by shareholders
in general meeting. Any grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the Option). In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the total number of share issues and to be issued,
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to such
person under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
share at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such
further grant of options is required to be approved by
shareholders of the Company at a general meeting of the
Company, with voting to be taken by way of poll.
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37.

144

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer for the grant of share option must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offeror the grant of an option is HK$1. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to provision of early termination thereof. There is
no requirement of a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The subscription price of a
Share in respect of any particular option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the Shares as started in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the ate of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing prices of the
Shares as stared in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant of the option.

At the end of the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no option

has been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.
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38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, the Group had also entered into the following

material related party transaction during the reporting period;

(a)

(b)

Transaction with related parties

38. EXBB AR S
RS MBRE M FTREEN
RIFEER - REBFFTIU T A

B

(a) HEREBLIHNXZ

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 5
Name of the related parties Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BHE 5B REME THERT FAT
Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited (Note (i)) Sales of products 1,607 1,941
FHRIEARAA () EmiHE
Kit Ho Engineering Limited (Note (ii)) Sales of products 720 6,790
s TIRBR 2 A (M (i) EmiiE
Kit Ho Earth Works Limited (Note (iii) Sales of products 1,460 -
s+ H EER R AR (& i) FEmmH &
Balances with related parties
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
Name of the related parties Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
B B REME THET FAT
Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited (Note (i)) Trade receivables 361 332
HXITRAERA R (MEEG) B 5 WA
Kit Ho Engineering Limited (Note (ii)) Trade receivables - 2,325
EOE TR AR QA (M (i) H 5 W RIE
Kit Ho Earth Works Limited (Note (iii)) Trade receivables 152 -
s+ & ERR A E (B EE (i) B S REWKRIA
Mr. Fong (Note (iv)) Amount due to a shareholder - (23)

77 S (BRE (V)

e — R R IR

Notes:

A close family member of an executive Director of the Company has
beneficial interest in Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited.

A close family member of an executive Director of the Company are
the director of Kit Ho Engineering Limited.

A brother of an executive Director of the Company has beneficial
interests in Kit Ho Earth Works Limited (formerly as known as Yuk

Shing Asia Construction Limited).

Mr. Fong is an executive Director of the Company.

GEX

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fei sk (IR £EAR

ARB—BHTEFN—RETRE
PREREEK TIRER DRI A EmiE

= e

ARB—BRTEFHN —RERER
BRAMETRARDRNESE -
ARB—RRPTERH — R LB
EE B ERR QA (A REEKE
MERBRAR) HEEZRER -

TEERRNDBRITES -
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38.

39.

40.

146

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Personal guaranteed provided by key management
personnel
The obligations under finance leases, bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts of the Group as at 31 March 2017 were
secured by personal guarantee of an executive Director of
the Company, Mr. Fong, life insurance and a property
owned by Mr. Fong. The life insurance owned by Mr. Fong
released during the year ended 31 March 2017.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The Directors of the Company are identified as key
management members of the Group and the compensation
of Directors and key management personnel during the

reporting period is set out in Notes 13 and 14.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged to
secure the obligations under finance leases granted to the Group
or borrowings of the Group as follow:

38.

39.

BERBBHAIRSZ @)

HEIEEEBEABSREMHENEARL
R
AEBR2017FIANEBHRME
AEFE  RITERRBITESH
RARITESHEEEBNEA
BEREFREHRBEHASRE LY
EEEE o FEEMERZASIR
S DR E E2017F3A318 IEF
JERRRR o

(c)

FTEEEABNMHE
ARREFREBER/AEENTIE
EEAE RRENHEERTE
ERABMEFHNMEIZR14-

(d)

BEEH
B TREEEEERR - ARER
7 58 1 0 R TR R O o A S

ET
A

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 228 913
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFR 4,000 -
4,228 913

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 May 2018, the Company and Virtue Ever Limited entered
into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
purchase and Virtue Ever Limited has conditionally agreed to sell
a 10% equity interest in the China Forest Food Limited at an
aggregate consideration of RMB1.5 million (including the earnest
money of RMB1.0 million which has been paid in cash) (the
“Acquisition”). The completion of the Acquisition under the
Acquisition Agreement is subject to certain customary conditions
precedent to be fulfilled. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 17 May 2018 for details.
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

4. REEEMELESBENYR

Obligations
under Amount
Bank Bank finance duetoa
overdraft borrowings leases shareholder Total
mE  EN-F
RITEX  B/ITER  HERAE  RRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FERL FERT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A 18 1,073 4,000 926 23 6,022
Changes from financing cash flows:  REFRERLRENE
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIBITER - (4,000) - - (4,000)
Repayment of obligation EEREMEAE
under finance lease - - (738) - (738)
Repayment of bank overdraft BRETEY (1,073) - - - (1,073)
Repayment to a shareholder m—BREER - - - 23 23
Interest paid ERFE () (53) (22) - (80)
Total changes in financing cash flows  BI &R ¢S 2 EHE%E (1,078) (4,053) (760) (23) (5,914)
Other changes: Hips
Interest expenses FERX 5 53 22 - 80
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31H - - 188 - 188

42.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issued by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2018.

42. RETIBESUBRER

GATBBRON2018F6A 2B HE
g b R IRE T -

Fek (IR EMABRAT / —T—N\FFR
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Financial Summary

MBRE

RESULT ¥iE
For the year ended 31 March
BE3A3MHLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154 20164F 2017 4F 2018 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T F#&T
Revenue g 242,949 146,920 180,616 164,491
Cost of sales Fizk=1D N (228,811) (125,964) (155,773)  (139,670)
Gross profit EF 14,138 20,956 24,843 24,821
Profit and total comprehensive  ZRRRIEEA A FEIEFEHF
income for the year attributable & 254858
to the owners of the Company 8,486 12,303 7,282 1,241
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
As at 31 March
MW3A318
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154F 2016 4F 2017 4 2018 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&TT FHEIT FHEIT FH T
Non-current asset EmEEE 997 2,189 1,073 12,385
Current assets mENEE 34,754 33,933 49,825 88,234
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,219 1,552 188 1,183
Current liabilities mEAE 20,805 12,540 21,398 11,662
Net current assets mENE ESHE 13,949 21,393 28,427 76,572
Net assets BEFE 9,727 22,030 29,312 87,774

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

No consolidated financial statement of the Group for the years ended

31 March 2013 and 2014 have been published.

The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016
were extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 29 March
2017. Such summary was prepared as if the current structure of the
Group had been in existence throughout these financial years and is
presented on the basis as set out in Note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

7 e

HIEFEZGEMBE®RE -
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